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.ƻŀǊŘǎΩ wŜǇƻǊǘ 
 

To the Members of  
Panache Innovations Limited 
 
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 37th Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company 
together with the Audited Standalone & Consolidated Financial Statement of PanacƘŜ LƴƴƻǾŀǘƛƻƴǎ [ƛƳƛǘŜŘ όάǘƘŜ 
/ƻƳǇŀƴȅέύ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ȅŜŀǊ ŜƴŘŜŘ aŀǊŎƘ омst, 2018. 
 
{¢!¢9 hC ¢I9 /hat!b¸Ω{ !CC!Lw{ 
 
Financial Results 
 
The summarized standalone and consolidated financial results of your Company are given below: 

 (Rs. in lakhs)  
 *Previous year figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary. 
 
Accounting treatment in preparation of Financial Statements 
 
The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 and other relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Standalone Performance 
 
5ǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ȅŜŀǊ ǳƴŘŜǊ ǊŜǾƛŜǿΣ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅ ŀŎƘƛŜǾŜŘ ǘƻǘŀƭ ǊŜǾŜƴǳŜ ƻŦ  опууΦто [ŀƪƘǎΣ ŀǎ ŎƻƳǇŀǊŜŘ ǘƻ  млффΦфр 
Lakhs in the previous year, representing a year-on-year growth of 217.17%. 
 
The Earnings before Interest, Depreciation, Tax and Appropriations (EBL¢5!ύ ǎǘƻƻŘ ŀǘ  отΦнл [ŀƪƘǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŎǳǊǊŜƴǘ 
ȅŜŀǊ ŀǎ ŎƻƳǇŀǊŜŘ ǘƻ  орΦрп [ŀƪƘǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǇǊŜǾƛƻǳǎ ȅŜŀǊΣ ǊŜǇǊŜǎŜƴǘƛƴƎ ŀ ȅŜŀǊ-on-year growth of 4.67%. 
 
¢ƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅ ǊŜƎƛǎǘŜǊŜŘ ƎǊƻǿǘƘ ƻŦ сΦло҈ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ bŜǘ tǊƻŦƛǘ ŀŦǘŜǊ ¢ŀȄ ǿƘƛŎƘ ǎǘƻƻŘ ŀǘ  нфΦмт [ŀƪƘǎ ŀǎ ŎƻƳǇŀǊŜŘ ǘƻ  
27.51 Lakhs in the previous year. 
 
Consolidated 
 
 5ǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ȅŜŀǊ ǳƴŘŜǊ ǊŜǾƛŜǿΣ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅ ŀŎƘƛŜǾŜŘ ŎƻƴǎƻƭƛŘŀǘŜŘ ǘƻǘŀƭ ǊŜǾŜƴǳŜ ƻŦ  пллуΦпп [ŀƪƘǎ ŀǎ ŎƻƳǇŀǊŜŘ ǘƻ 
 ммнлΦсо [ŀƪƘǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǇǊŜǾƛƻǳǎ ȅŜŀǊΣ ǊŜǇǊŜǎŜƴǘƛƴƎ ŀ ȅŜŀǊ-on-year growth of 257.70%. 

 
The EŀǊƴƛƴƎǎ ōŜŦƻǊŜ LƴǘŜǊŜǎǘΣ 5ŜǇǊŜŎƛŀǘƛƻƴΣ ¢ŀȄ ŀƴŘ !ǇǇǊƻǇǊƛŀǘƛƻƴǎ ό9.L¢5!ύ ǎǘƻƻŘ ŀǘ  тмΦор [ŀƪƘǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŎǳǊǊŜƴǘ 
ȅŜŀǊ ŀǎ ŎƻƳǇŀǊŜŘ ǘƻ  офΦоо [ŀƪƘǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǇǊŜǾƛƻǳǎ ȅŜŀǊΣ ǊŜǇǊŜǎŜƴǘƛƴƎ ŀ ȅŜŀǊ-on-year growth of 81.41%. 
 

Particulars Financial Year Ended 

Standalone Consolidated 

31/03/2018 31/03/2017 31/03/2018 31/03/2017 

Revenue from operations (net) 3488.73 1099.95 4008.44 1120.63 

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and 

amortization (EBITDA) and prior period 

adjustments 

37.20 35.54 71.35 39.33 

Depreciation and amortization expenses 1.26 1.22 1.26 1.22 

Finance Cost 0.11 0.15 0.10 0.15 

Profit before tax (PBT) 35.83 34.17 69.99 37.96 

Profit after tax and minority interest (PAT) 29.17 27.51 63.30 31.30 



 

4  |  Annual Report 2017-18 
 

The Company registered growth of 102.23% in ǘƘŜ bŜǘ tǊƻŦƛǘ ŀŦǘŜǊ ¢ŀȄ ǿƘƛŎƘ ǎǘƻƻŘ ŀǘ  соΦол [ŀƪƘǎ ŀǎ ŎƻƳǇŀǊŜŘ ǘƻ 
 омΦол [ŀƪƘǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǇǊŜǾƛƻǳǎ ȅŜŀǊΦ 

 
DIVIDEND 
 
Keeping in view the continued good performance, future fund requirements of the Company and policy of the 
Company for rewarding Members, youǊ ŘƛǊŜŎǘƻǊǎ ŀǊŜ ǇƭŜŀǎŜŘ ǘƻ ǊŜŎƻƳƳŜƴŘ ŀ ŘƛǾƛŘŜƴŘ ƻŦ  лΦрл ǇŜǊ Ŝǉǳƛǘȅ ǎƘŀǊŜ ƻŦ 
CŀŎŜ ±ŀƭǳŜ ƻŦ  млκ- on 30,39,900 Equity Shares (excluding the Equity Share upon which the members have 
waived/forgone his/their right to receive the dividend by him/them for Financial Year 2017-18) for the financial year 
2017-18. The dividend, if approved by the members of the Company in the AGM, shall be subject to Dividend 
Distribution Tax to be paid by your Company but will be tax-free in the hands of the Members. 
 
Members belonging to the promoter group of your Company have waived their right to receive dividend for the 
Financial Year 2017-18 and hence the Dividend, if any, approved by the Members at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting shall be only upon 30,39,900 Equity Shares.  
 
TRANSFER TO RESERVE 
 
¸ƻǳǊ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅ ŘƻŜǎ ƴƻǘ ǇǊƻǇƻǎŜ ǘƻ ǘǊŀƴǎŦŜǊ ŀƴȅ ŀƳƻǳƴǘ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƘŜ ŎǳǊǊŜƴǘ ȅŜŀǊΩǎ ǇǊƻŦƛǘǎ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ DŜƴŜǊŀƭ wŜǎŜǊǾŜΦ  
 
DEPOSITS 
 
There were no public deposits accepted during the year under review or any amount of principal or interest thereof 
was outstanding in terms of section 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of 
Deposits) Rules, 2014, for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2018.  
 
CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY 
 
During the year, there is no change in the nature of the business of the Company. 
 
SHARE CAPITAL 
 
During the year under review, the Company has not issued shares with differential voting rights. It has neither issued 
employee stock options nor sweat equity shares and does not have any scheme to fund its employees to purchase 
the shares of the Company. 
 
SUBSIDIARY COMPANY AND CONSOLIDATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
 
During the year under review, Panache Innovations DMCC became Wholly Owned Subsidiary of your Company. 
The Board of Directors reviewed the affairs of the subsidiaries. In accordance with Section 129(3) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, we have prepared Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and its Subsidiaries viz. Eddy and 
Andy International Limited and Panache Innovations DMCC, in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards notified 
ǳƴŘŜǊ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴƛŜǎ όLƴŘƛŀƴ !ŎŎƻǳƴǘƛƴƎ {ǘŀƴŘŀǊŘǎύ wǳƭŜǎΣ нлмр όΨLƴŘ !{ΩύΣ ǿƘƛŎƘ ŦƻǊƳǎ ǇŀǊǘ ƻŦ ǘƘƛǎ !ƴƴǳŀƭ wŜǇƻǊǘΦ ! 
statement containing the salient features of the financial position of the subsidiary companies in Form AOC-1 is 
annexed as Annexure I. In accordance with Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the audited financial statements, 
including the consolidated financial statements and related information of the Company and audited accounts of 
subsidiaries is also available on our website at www.panache.co.in. 
 
¢ƘŜ tƻƭƛŎȅ ŦƻǊ ŘŜǘŜǊƳƛƴƛƴƎ ƳŀǘŜǊƛŀƭ ǎǳōǎƛŘƛŀǊƛŜǎ ŀǎ ŀǇǇǊƻǾŜŘ Ƴŀȅ ōŜ ŀŎŎŜǎǎŜŘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ǿŜōǎƛǘŜ ŀǘ 
www.panache.co.in  
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 
 
The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations and 
that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively. 
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In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors confirm that: 
 
A. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with 

proper explanation relating to material departures;  
 
B. the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 
at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;  

 
C. the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;  

 
D. the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;  
 
E. the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal 

financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively;  
 
F. the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws are in 

place and such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
Your Company continues to place greater emphasis on managing its affairs with diligence, transparency, responsibility 
and accountability and is committed to adopting and adhering to best Corporate Governance practices. The Board 
considers itself as a trustee of its shareholders and acknowledges its responsibilities towards them for creation and 
safeguarding their wealth. The Company has set itself the objective of expanding its capacities.  
 
However, as per provisions of Regulation 15 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, providing a separate report on Corporate Governance under Regulation 27 (2) is not applicable to the Company.  
 
RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The Company has formulated a Risk Management Policy for dealing with different kinds of risks, both internal and 
external, which it faces in day to day operations of the Company. Risk Management Policy of the Company outlines 
different kinds of risks and risk mitigating measures to be adopted by the Board. The Company has adequate internal 
control systems and procedures to combat the risk. The Risk management procedure will be reviewed by the Audit 
Committee and Board of Directors on time to time basis.  
For more details on the topic, please refer to the Management Discussion and Analysis report which form part of the 
Annual Report. Policy on Risk Management is available on the website of the Company www.panache.co.in 
 
CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTY 
 
During the period under review, all transactions entered into with the related parties as defined under the Companies 
!ŎǘΣ нлмо ǿŜǊŜ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ƻǊŘƛƴŀǊȅ ŎƻǳǊǎŜ ƻŦ ōǳǎƛƴŜǎǎ ŀƴŘ ƻƴ ŀǊƳΩǎ ƭŜƴƎǘƘ ǇǊƛŎƛƴƎ ōŀǎƛǎ ŀƴŘ Řƻ ƴƻǘ ŀǘǘǊŀŎǘ ǘƘŜ ǇǊƻǾƛǎƛƻƴǎ 
of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. There were no materially significant transactions with the related parties 
during the financial year other than those mentioned in Form AOC-н ŀǘ !ƴƴŜȄǳǊŜ LL ƻŦ ǘƘƛǎ 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊΩǎ wŜǇƻǊǘΦ !ƭǎƻΣ 
suitable disclosure as required by the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS 24) has been made in the notes to Financial 
Statements, which forms a part of the Annual Report. 
 
All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Board / Audit Committee for approval. Prior omnibus approval 
of the Board / Audit Committee is obtained for the transactions which are of a foreseen or repetitive in nature. A 
statement of all Related Party Transactions is placed before the Board / Audit Committee for its review on a meeting 
to meeting basis, specifying the nature, value and terms and conditions of the transactions.  
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Policy on Related Party Transactions 
 
As per Regulation 15 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, Company is exempted from complying with Regulation 23 of 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and hence preparing a Policy on Related Party Transactions is not applicable to the 
Company.   
 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 
 
The Management Discussion and Analysis Report, as required under SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015, forms part of the 
Annual Report is attached herewith marked as Annexure ςIII. 
 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 
 
During the period under review, the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 w.r.t. Corporate Social 
Responsibility are not applicable to the Company. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 
Changes in Directors & KMP 
During the year under review, following changes took place in the Board and Key Managerial Personnel; 
 
ü Mr. Manan Mayur Trivedi was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company by the Board of Directors 

with effect from 27th April, 2017. 
 
ü Mr. Vijay Patil had resigned from the post of Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company with 

effect from 26th August, 2017. 
 
ü Mr. Manan Trivedi resigned from the post of Chief Financial Officer of the Company with effect from 25th 

October, 2017. 
 
ü Mr. Jayachandran Sunderamoorthy (holding DIN: 07706021) was liable to retire by rotation and being 

eligible was re-appointed as Whole-Time Director of the Company at the 36th Annual General Meeting held 
on 21st September, 2017. 

 
ü Mr. Jayachandran Sunderamoorthy (holding DIN: 07706021) was re-appointed as Whole-Time Director of 

the Company for a period of 3 years by the Board of Directors on 11th January, 2018 with effect from 14th 

January, 2018, subject to the approval of Members in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.  
ü Mr. Priyank Sangoi was appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer with effect from 11th 

January, 2018. 
 

ü Mr. Jayachandran Sunderamoorthy (holding DIN: 07706021) was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the 
Company and re-ŘŜǎƛƎƴŀǘŜŘ ŀǎ ά²ƘƻƭŜ-Time Director ϧ /ƘƛŜŦ CƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ hŦŦƛŎŜǊέ with effect from 12th 
February, 2018, at the Board meeting held on same day, subject to the approval of Members in the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting. 

 

ü Mr. Anil Jaychand Dagade (holding DIN: 02701030) was appointed as Additional Independent Director of the 
Company for a term of Five years with effect from 31st March, 2018, at the Board meeting held on same day, 
subject to the approval of Members in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

 
Director Retiring by Rotation 
 
In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. 
Amit Devchand Rambhia (holding DIN: 00165919), Managing Director of the Company, retires by rotation at ensuing 
Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment. The Board recommends his 
reappointment as Director liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
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Declaration by Independent Directors 
 
In accordance with the Section 149(7) of the Act, each Independent Director has given a written declaration to the 
Company at the time of their appointment and at the first meeting of the Board of Directors in every financial year 
confirming that he/she meets the criteria of independence as mentioned under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Regulation 16(1) (b) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. Also, in the opinion of the Board, the Independent 
directors meet the said criteria. 
 
Number of Board Meetings and attendance thereat by Board: 
 
Your Board of DirectoǊǎ όά.ƻŀǊŘέύ ƳŜŜǘǎ ŀǘ ǊŜƎǳƭŀǊ ƛƴǘŜǊǾŀƭǎ ǘƻ ŘƛǎŎǳǎǎ ŀƴŘ ŘŜŎƛŘŜ ƻƴ ǾŀǊƛƻǳǎ ōǳǎƛƴŜǎǎ ǇƻƭƛŎƛŜǎΣ 
strategies, financial matters and other businesses. However, in case of an exigency or urgent business matters, the 
.ƻŀǊŘΩǎ ŀǇǇǊƻǾŀƭ ƛǎ ǘŀƪŜƴ ōȅ ǇŀǎǎƛƴƎ wŜǎƻƭǳǘƛƻƴǎ by Circulation or on a shorter notice for such matters as permitted 
by law. The notice of Board meeting is given well in advance to all the Directors of the Company. 
 
The maximum interval between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days as prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
During the Financial Year 2017-18, Total 8 (Eight) meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company were held on 
27th April, 2017, 22nd May, 2017, 18th August, 2017, 12th September, 2017, 14th November, 2017, 11th January, 2018, 
12th February, 2018 and 31st March, 2018. The details of attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings are given 
below; 
 

Sr. No. Name of Director No. of meetings eligible No. of Board Meetings attended  

1 Amit Devchand Rambhia 8 8 

2 Jayachandran Sunderamoorthy 8 8 

3 Rohit Mathur 8 8 

4 Meeta Mehta 8 8 

5 Anil Jaychand Dagade N.A N.A 

 
Committees of the Board: 
 
The Board of Directors has constituted various statutory committees comprising of Executive, Non-Executive and 
Independent Directors to discharge various functions, duties and responsibilities cast under the Companies Act, 2013, 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and other applicable statutes, rules and regulations applicable to the Company from 
time to time. The Committees also focus on critical functions of the Company in order to ensure smooth and efficient 
business operations. The Board of Directors is responsible for constituting, assigning, co-opting and fixing the terms 
of reference of these committees in line with the extant regulatory requirements. The Committees meets at regular 
intervals for deciding various matters and providing directions and authorizations to the management for its 
implementation.  
 
Currently, the Board of Directors has formulated the following committees, viz. 
i. Audit Committee 
ii. Nomination & Remuneration Committee 
iii. {ǘŀƪŜƘƻƭŘŜǊǎΩ wŜƭŀǘƛƻƴǎƘƛǇ /ƻƳƳƛǘǘŜŜ 
Audit Committee: 
 
During the year under review, the Audit Committee comprised of the following Directors; 
 

Sr. No. Name of the Committee Member Position in the Committee 

1 Meeta K. Mehta Chairperson 

2 Rohit Mathur Member 

3 Amit Rambhia Member 

 
The Audit Committee was reconstituted on 28th May, 2018 vide Circular Resolution passed by the Board of Directors 
and currently the Committee comprises as follows; 



 

8  |  Annual Report 2017-18 
 

 

Sr. No. Name of the Committee Member Position in the Committee 

1 Meeta K. Mehta Chair Person 

2 Rohit Mathur Member 

3 Amit Rambhia Member 

4 Anil Jaychand Dagade Member 

  
During the year under review there were Six (6) Meetings held on 27th April, 2017, 22nd May, 2017, 18th August, 2017, 
12th September, 2017, 14th November, 2017 and 12th February, 2018. The details of attendance of each Director at 
the Audit Committee Meetings are given below; 
 

Sr. No. Name of Member No. of Committee Meetings eligible  No. of Committee Meetings attended 

1 Mrs. Meeta Mehta 6 6 

2 Mr. Amit Rambhia 6 6 

3 Mr. Rohit Mathur 6 6 

 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 
 
Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprised of the following Directors: 
 

Sr. No. Name of Member Position in the Committee 

1 Mr. Rohit Mathur Chairman 

2 Mr. Jayachandran Sunderamoorthy  Member 

3 Mrs. Meeta Mehta Member 

 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was reconstituted on 11th January, 2018 by the Board of Directors 
and the Committee comprised as follows; 
 

Sr. No. Name of Member Position in the Committee 

1 Mr. Rohit Mathur Chairman 

2 Mr. Amit Rambhia  Member 

3 Mrs. Meeta Mehta Member 

 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was reconstituted on 31st March, 2018 by the Board of Directors and 
currently the Committee comprises as follows; 
 

Sr. No. Name of the Committee Member Position in the Committee 

1 Rohit Mathur Chairperson 

2 Meeta K. Mehta Member 

3 Anil Jaychand Dagade Member 

 
During the year under review there were four (4) times during the financial year 2017-18 on 27th April, 2017, 11th 
January, 2018, 12th February, 2018 and 31st March, 2018. 
 

SN Name of Member 

 

No. of Committee Meetings 

eligible  

No. of Committee Meetings 

attended 

1 Mrs. Meeta Mehta 4 4 

2 Mr. Amit Rambhia 2 2 

3 Mr. Rohit Mathur 4 4 

4 Mr. Jayachandran Sunderamoorthy 2 2 

5 Mr. Anil Jaychand Dagade N.A N.A 
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Stakeholders Relationship Committee: 
 
5ǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ȅŜŀǊ ǳƴŘŜǊ ǊŜǾƛŜǿΣ ǘƘŜ {ǘŀƪŜƘƻƭŘŜǊǎΩ wŜƭŀǘƛƻƴǎƘƛǇ /ƻƳƳƛǘǘŜŜ ŎƻƳǇǊƛǎŜŘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŦƻƭƭƻǿƛƴƎ 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊǎΤ 
 

Sr. No. Name of Member Position in the Committee 

1 Mr. Rohit Mathur Chairman 

2 Mrs. Meeta Mehta Member 

3 Mr. Amit Rambhia Member 

 
During the year under review there was 1 (One) Meeting held on 12th February, 2018. The details of attendance of 
each Director at the {ǘŀƪŜƘƻƭŘŜǊǎΩ wŜƭŀǘƛƻƴǎƘƛǇ /ƻƳƳƛǘǘŜŜ aŜŜǘƛƴƎǎ ŀǊŜ ƎƛǾŜƴ ōŜƭƻǿΤ 
 

Sr. No. Name of the Member No. of Committee Meetings eligible  No. of Committee Meetings attended 

1 Mr. Rohit Mathur 1 1 
2 Mrs. Meeta Mehta 1 1 
3 Mr. Amit Rambhia 1 1 

 
The details of complaints received and resolved during the Financial Year 2017-18 are given in the table below: 
 

Particulars No. of Complaints Attended 

Opening as on 1st April, 2017 - 

Received during the year - 

Resolved during the year - 

Closing as on 31st March, 2018 - 

 
During the year under review there was one General Meeting held on 19th September, 2017 i.e. Annual General 
Meeting and all the Four Directors were present at the said meeting.  
 
Compliance with Secretarial Standards on Board and Annual General Meetings:  
 
The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards 1 & 2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India 
on Board Meetings and Annual General Meetings. 
 
Annual Evaluation process 
 
Pursuant to Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Company has ά5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊǎ tŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ 
9Ǿŀƭǳŀǘƛƻƴ tƻƭƛŎȅέ in place. In accordance with the said Policy, all the Directors had filled up Questioner and feedback 
form for evaluation of individual Directors, Board as a whole, Chairman, Committees, and Independent Directors, 
which format forms a part of the policy. Thereafter Nomination & Remuneration Committee evaluated every Director 
including Independent Director on 12th February, 2018 and submitted a report on evaluation to the Chairman of the 
Company.  
 
Further the Board has also evaluated its own performance, Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Chairman and all Directors individually. The Board concluded 
that the overall performance of all the Directors were very good. 
 
LƴŘŜǇŜƴŘŜƴǘ 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊΩǎ {ŜǇŀǊŀǘŜ aŜŜǘƛƴƎ 
 
A separate meeting of Independent Directors of the Company, was held on 12th February, 2018 as required under 
Schedule IV to the Act (Code for Independent Directors) and Regulation 25(3) of the Listing Regulations.  
 
At the meeting following matters were taken up; 

¶ reviewed the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole. 

¶ reviewed the performance of the Chairperson of the Company. 

¶ assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information. 



 

10  |  Annual Report 2017-18 
 

 
All Independent Directors of the Company attended the Meeting of Independent Directors. 
 
HUMAN RESOURCE 
 
During the year under review, the personal relations with the employees remained cordial in all respects. The 
Company recognizes talent and has judiciously followed the principle of rewarding performance. The total number 
of employees on the rolls of the Company were seven as on 31st March, 2018. Material disclosures in the Human 
Resource front have been detailed under the heaŘ άIǳƳŀƴ wŜǎƻǳǊŎŜέ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ aŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ 5ƛǎŎǳǎǎƛƻƴ ϧ !ƴŀƭȅǎƛǎ 
which forms a part of the Annual Report.  
 
!¦5L¢hw{ !b5 !¦5L¢hw{Ω w9thw¢ 
 
Statutory Audit 
 
The Members of the Company at their 36th Annual General Meeting (AGM) held in 2017, approved the appointment 
of M/s. Jain Salia & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Firm Registration No.116291W), as statutory 
auditors of the Company, for a term of five years and to hold office till conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to 
be held in the year 2022. 
 
M/s. Jain Salia & Associates, the Statutory Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2017-18 have conducted the 
audit for the said period. There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by M/s. Jain Salia & 
Associates, in their report and hence do not call for any further explanation or comments from the Board under 
Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. Further the specific notes forming part of the Accounts referred to in the 
!ǳŘƛǘƻǊΩǎ wŜǇƻǊǘ ǊŜŀŘ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ ƴƻǘŜǎ ǘƻ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǎǘatements as referred to therein, are self-explanatory and give 
complete information and addresses the observations, if any. 
  
Secretarial Audit 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of the Company had appointed Ms. Payal Tachak, a 
Company Secretary in Practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the year 2017-18. The 
Secretarial Audit Report confirm that the company has complied with the applicable laws. The Secretarial Audit 
Report forms part of this Annual Report and is attached herewith marked as Annexure IV. 
 
Internal Auditor: 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Act and the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors 
of the Company have appointed M/s. Sanket Sangoi & Associates, to conduct internal audit reviews for the Company. 
 
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE 
END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE 
OF THE REPORT 
 
There are no material changes and commitment affecting financial position which have occurred between the end of 
the financial year of the company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the Directors Report.  
 
EVENTS WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE 
CLb!b/L![ {¢!¢9a9b¢{ w9[!¢9 !b5 ¢I9 5!¢9 hC ¢I9 5Lw9/¢hw{Ω w9thw¢ 
 
The Regional Director (RD), YƻƭƪŀǘŀΣ ǾƛŘŜ ƛǘǎ ƻǊŘŜǊ ŘŀǘŜŘ !ǇǊƛƭ нпΣ нлмуΣ ŀǇǇǊƻǾŜŘ ǘƘŜ ǎƘƛŦǘƛƴƎ ƻŦ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ǊŜƎƛǎǘŜǊŜŘ 
office from the State of West Bengal to the State of Maharashtra. 
 
The Board on August 1, 2018, vide their resolution passed through circulation, have approved the registered office 
address in Bhiwandi situated at 2nd Floor, Building No. A3, Unit No. 201A, Babosa Industrial Park, Mumbai-Nashik 
Highway (NH3), Saravali Village, Talathi Saja Temghar, Taluka Bhiwandi, Dist. Thane 421302, Maharashtra, IndiaΩ ǿƛǘƘ 
effect from August 1, 2018. 
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DISCLOSURES 
 
Vigil Mechanism 
 
In line with the best Corporate Governance practices, the Company, has put in place a system through which the 
Directors, employees and business associates may report concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected 
fraud or violation of the Company's Code of Conduct without fear of reprisal.  
 
The Company has put in place a process by which employees and business associates have direct access to the 
Vigilance Officer and Chairperson of Audit CommitǘŜŜΦ ¢ƘŜ ²ƘƛǎǘƭŜ .ƭƻǿŜǊ tƻƭƛŎȅ Ƙŀǎ ōŜŜƴ ǇƻǎǘŜŘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ 
website at www.panache.co.in 
 
Disclosure under The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 
 
The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a Policy on Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at the Workplace, in line with the provisions of the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules there under. 
The Policy aims to provide protection to employees at the workplace and prevent and redress complaints of sexual 
harassment and for matters connected or incidental thereto, with the objective of providing a safe working 
environment, where employees feel secure.  
 
The Company has complied with the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee as provided under the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Further the Company has not 
received any complaint of sexual harassment during the financial year 2017-18.  
 
 
Significant and Material Orders Passed by the Regulators or Courts 
 
The prayer was filed by the Company before the IƻƴΩōƭŜ /ƻǳǊǘ ƻŦ /ƘƛŜŦ WǳŘƛŎƛŀƭ aŀƎƛǎǘǊŀǘŜΣ !ƭƛǇƻǊŜΣ YƻƭƪŀǘŀΣ ŦƻǊ 
compounding and disposal of case no. C.C. No. 6330A/14 of 2014 and C.C. No. C/2523/14 of 2014 which was filed 
ōŜŦƻǊŜ ǘƘŜ ǎŀƛŘ IƻƴΩōƭŜ /ƻǳǊǘ ōȅ ǘƘŜ hŦŦƛŎŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ wŜƎƛǎǘǊŀǊ ƻŦ /ƻƳǇŀƴƛŜǎΣ ²Ŝǎǘ .ŜƴƎŀƭΣ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ Ǿƛƻƭŀǘƛƻƴ ǳƴŘŜǊ {ŜŎǘƛƻƴ 
220 of the erstwhile Companies !ŎǘΣ мфрсΦ tǳǊǎǳŀƴǘ ǘƻ ǎŀƳŜΣ ǘƘŜ IƻƴΩōƭŜ /ƻǳǊǘ ǇŀǎǎŜŘ ŀƴ ƻǊŘŜǊ ŘŀǘŜŘ млκлмκнлму 
and 15/02/2018 respectively for both the cases in the following manner: 
 
For C.C. No. 6330A/14 of 2014: Company was imposed a fine of Rs. 500/- wherein total fine involved in the order was 
Rs. 1,000/- 
 
For C.C. No. C/2523/14 of 2014: Company was imposed a fine of Rs. 500/- wherein total fine involved in the order 
was Rs. 2,500/- 
 
Your Company has paid the fine to ǘƘŜ IƻƴΩōƭŜ /ƻǳǊǘ within the stipulated period. 
 
Particulars of Loans given, Investments made, Guarantees given and Securities Provided 
 
The Company has made compliance with the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year 
under review. Please refer Note 4,5 & 10 to the Standalone Financial Statement which forms a part of this Annual 
report. 
 
Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 
 
The information on Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo as 
stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014, 
is attached as Annexure V which forms part of this Report. 
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Extract of Annual Return 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, an extract of the Annual Return of 
the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2018, is provided in the prescribed Form MGT ς 9 as Annexure VI which 
forms part of Directors Report. 
 
Particulars of Employees and related disclosures 
 
In terms of the first proviso to Section 136 of the Act, the Reports and Accounts are being sent to the shareholders 
excluding the information required under Rule 5(2) and (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. Any shareholder interested in obtaining the same may write to the Company 
Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company. The said information is available for inspection by the Members 
at the Registered Office of the Company on any working day of the Company upto the date of the 37th Annual General 
Meeting.  
 
The statement containing information as required under the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 
5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is given in Annexure 
VII and forms part of this Report. 
 
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY 
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company is attached herewith marked as Annexure VIII and also 
placed on its website www.panache.co.in. 
 
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 
 
Statements in this Report and the Management Discussion and Analysis may be forward looking within the meaning 
of the applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results may differ materially from those expressed in the 
statement.  
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
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Date: 14/08/2018 

Place: Mumbai 

By order of the Board of Directors of  

Panache Innovations Limited 

 

 

 

____________________________ 

Amit Devchand Rambhia 

Chairman & Managing Director 

DIN: 00165919 
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Annexure I to Directors Report 

 
FORM AOC-1 
(Pursuant to first proviso to section 129(3) read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries / Associate Companies  / Joint 
Ventures u/s 129(3) read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 

 
tŀǊǘ ά!έ ς Subsidiary 

Sr. 

No. 

Particulars Details Details 

1 Name of the subsidiary Eddy and Andy International 

Limited 

Panache Innovations DMCC 

2 The date since when subsidiary was acquired  18/07/2016 06/09/2017 

3 Reporting period for the subsidiary 

concerned, if different from the holding 

ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ǊŜǇƻǊǘƛƴƎ ǇŜriod 

N.A. N.A. 

4 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on 

the last date of the relevant Financial year in 

the case of foreign subsidiaries 

INR 65.0441 per USD INR 65.0441 per USD 

5 Share capital 0.83 8.86 

6 Reserves & surplus 3.03 35.08 

7 Total assets 4.40 61.58 

8 Total Liabilities 4.40 61.58 

9 Investments Nil Nil 

10 Turnover 13.30 506.41 

11 Profit before taxation (0.70) 34.86 

12 Provision for taxation Nil Nil 

13 Profit after taxation (0.70) 34.86 

14 Proposed Dividend - - 

15 % of shareholding 100% 100% 

¶ Indian Rupee equivalents of the figures given in foreign currencies in the accounts of the Subsidiary Companies, is 

based on the exchange rates as on 31.03.2018. 

¶ None of the subsidiaries of the Company are yet to commence business operations. 

¶ None of subsidiaries of the Company have been liquidated or sold during the year. 

 
tŀǊǘ ά.έΥ !ǎǎƻŎƛŀǘŜǎ ŀƴŘ Wƻƛƴǘ ±ŜƴǘǳǊŜǎ 

 
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures  
- Not Applicable ŀǎ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅ ŘƻŜǎƴΩǘ ƘŀǾŜ ŀǎǎƻŎƛŀǘŜǎ ŀƴŘ Ƨƻƛƴǘ ǾŜƴǘǳǊŜǎ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ CƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ¸ŜŀǊ нлмт-18 
 
 

 

 

 

 

Date: 14/08/2018 

Place: Mumbai 

 

By order of the Board of Directors of  

Panache Innovations Limited 

 

 

____________________________ 

Amit Devchand Rambhia 

Chairman & Managing Director 

DIN: 00165919 
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Annexure II to Directors Report 
 
FORM NO. AOC-2 
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 
нлмо ƛƴŎƭǳŘƛƴƎ ŎŜǊǘŀƛƴ ŀǊƳΩǎ ƭŜƴƎǘƘ ǘǊŀƴǎŀŎǘƛƻƴǎ ǳƴŘŜǊ ǘƘƛǊŘ ǇǊƻǾƛǎƻ ǘƘŜǊŜǘƻ  
 
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis- NIL 
 

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship 
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions 
(c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions 
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any 
(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions 
(f) date(s) of approval by the Board 
(g) Amount paid as advances, if any: 
(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to section 188 

 
2.  Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis-  
SN Name of Related Party  Nature of Contract  Nature of Relationship Duration of 

Contract  

Date of approval 

of Board 

Amount Paid 

as advances 

Salient Terms Amount 

1 Panache Digilife Limited 

(Formerly Vardhaman 

Technology Ltd; Earlier 

Vardhaman Technology 

Pvt Ltd) 

Sales Amit Rambhia is Promoter 

Member & Managing 

Director.  

F.Y. 2017-18 27.04.2017 NIL Transacǘƛƻƴ ŜȄŜŎǳǘŜŘ ƻƴ !ǊƳΩǎ 

length & in Ordinary Course of 

Business. 

5,24,38,396 

2 Purchases F.Y. 2017-18 27.04.2017 5,70,63,541 

3 Service Rendered F.Y. 2017-18 27.04.2017 12,56,700 

4 Services availed (Use 

of facilities at 

Ghatkopar premises) 

Due for 

renewal on 

17.06.2019 

10.06.2016 

        & 

18.08.2017 

!ǎ ǇŜǊ Ψ¦ǎŜ ƻŦ CŀŎƛƭƛǘƛŜǎ 

!ƎǊŜŜƳŜƴǘΩ ǿƘƛŎƘ ƛǎ ƻƴ !ǊƳΩǎ 

length & in Ordinary Course of 

Business 

14,32,386 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: 14/08/2018 

Place: Mumbai 

 

By order of the Board of Directors of  

Panache Innovations Limited 

 

 

____________________________ 

Amit Devchand Rambhia 

                                                                                                                                              Chairman & Managing Director  

                                                                                                                                                                        (DIN: 00165919) 
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Annexure III to Directors Report 
  

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 

1. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS 
 
Indian IT Industry is dynamic and highly competitive, with frequent changes in both technologies and business 
models. IT industry in India has been one of the most significant growth contributors for the Indian economy. The 
industry has helped India transform from a rural and agriculture-based economy to a knowledge-based economy. 
 

2. OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS 
 
Opportunities  

¶ Changing consumer preferences and growing Industrial base 

¶ High Government Focus 

¶ Technological Tie-ups & Research and development  
 
Threats 

¶ Competition from local and multinational players  

¶ Execution risk  

¶ Regulatory changes  

¶ Input Cost risk 

¶ Attraction and retention of human capital  

¶ Technological Advancements 
 

3. OUTLOOK 
 
The last financial year has been year of new initiatives for company. Baring the unforeseen circumstances and the 
risks and concerns, the management is hopeful to achieve reasonable performance in the current financial year 
2018-2019. 
 

4. RISK AND CONCERNS 
 

Like every business, the Company faces risks, both internal and external, in the undertaking of its day-to-day 
operations and in pursuit of its longer-term objectives. A detailed policy is drawn up wherein risks are identified, 
assessed, analyzed and accepted / mitigated to an acceptable level within the risk appetite of the Company. The 
major risks are as follows, which Company strives hard to mitigate; 
 

¶ Credit Risk  

¶ Competition Risk  

¶ Input Cost Risk 

¶ Technology Related Risk 
 

5. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY 
 
The Company implemented internal control systems to ensure that all assets are safeguarded and protected 
against loss and that transactions are recorded and reported correctly. The internal control system is 
ŎƻƳƳŜƴǎǳǊŀǘŜ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ ǎƛȊŜ ŀƴŘ ƴŀǘǳǊŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ōǳǎƛƴŜǎǎΦ ¢ƘŜ ǎȅǎǘŜƳǎ ŀǊŜ ǊŜƎǳƭŀǊly reviewed for 
effectiveness. 
 

6. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE  
 
¢Ƙƛǎ Ƙŀǎ ōŜŜƴ ŎƻǾŜǊŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊΩǎ ǊŜǇƻǊǘ ǎǇŜŎƛŦƛŎŀƭƭȅ ǳƴŘŜǊ ǘƘŜ ǎŜŎǘƛƻƴ ƻƴ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǊŜǎǳƭǘǎ ŀƴŘ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜΦ 
The financial review for the year has also been separately covered in this Annual Report. 
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7. HUMAN RESOURCE 

 
We believe that the domain knowledge and experience of our Promoters and our management team provides us 
with a significant competitive advantage as we seek to grow in our existing markets and enter new geographies. 
The Company has hired qualified professional management and key personnel, which will enable to run the 
/ƻƳǇŀƴȅ ƛƴŘŜǇŜƴŘŜƴǘƭȅΦ CǳǊǘƘŜǊ ŦƭŜȄƛōƭŜ Iw ǇƻƭƛŎƛŜǎ ǊŜŦƭŜŎǘƛƴƎ ƻǳǊ ƻǊƎŀƴƛȊŀǘƛƻƴ ǾŀƭǳŜ ƻŦ Ψ¢ǊǳǎǘΩ ŀƴŘ ǿƻǊƪ-life 
balance have been continuously devised. Employee engagement activities are conducted to make our workplace 
a fun-filled one. The staff strength of the Company as on 31st March, 2018 was Seven. 
 

8. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT: 
 
Statements in the Management Discussions and Analysis Report in regard to projections, estimates and 
expectations have been made in good faith. Many unforeseen factors may come into play and affect the actual 
results which could be different from what the Directors envisage in terms of future performance and outlook. 
LƳǇƻǊǘŀƴǘ ŦŀŎǘƻǊǎ ǘƘŀǘ ŎƻǳƭŘ ƳŀƪŜ ŀ ŘƛŦŦŜǊŜƴŎŜ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴǎ ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜ ŀƳƻƴƎ ƻǘƘŜǊǎΣ ŎƭƛƳŀǘƛŎ 
conditions, economic conditions affecting demand/ supply and price conditions in the markets in which the 
Company operates, changes in the Government regulations, tax laws and other statutes and other incidental 
factors. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: 14/08/2018 

Place: Mumbai 

By order of the Board of Directors of  

Panache Innovations Limited 

 

 

____________________________ 

Amit Devchand Rambhia 

Chairman & Managing Director 

DIN: 00165919 
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Annexure IV to Directors Report 
 

Secretarial Audit Report 
For the Financial Year Ended on 31st March, 2017. 
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies  
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
To, 
The Members, 
Panache Innovations Limited 
 
I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Panache Innovations Limited (hereinafter called άǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅέ). The Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances 
and expressing my opinion thereon. 
 
.ŀǎŜŘ ƻƴ Ƴȅ ǾŜǊƛŦƛŎŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ōƻƻks, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the 
audit period covering the financial year ended March 31, 2018 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder 
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner 
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
 
1. I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Panache 

Innovations Limited όάǘƘŜ ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅέύ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ȅŜŀǊ ŜƴŘŜŘ aŀǊŎƘ о1st, 2018 according to the provisions of: 
 

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 
 

ii. ¢ƘŜ {ŜŎǳǊƛǘƛŜǎ /ƻƴǘǊŀŎǘǎ όwŜƎǳƭŀǘƛƻƴύ !ŎǘΣ мфрс όΨ{/w!Ωύ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ ǊǳƭŜǎ ƳŀŘŜ ǘƘŜǊŜǳƴŘŜǊΤ 
 

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and bye-laws framed thereunder; 
 

iv. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 
мффн όΨ{9.L !ŎǘΩύΥ- 

 
a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011;  
 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015; 
  

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;  
 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2009;  
 

e) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 
extent of Foreign Direct Investment. Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings; 

 
2. Provisions of the following Regulations and guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

Act, 1992 were not applicable to the Company under the financial year 2017-18: 
 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;  

 
b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;  
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c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 
 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and 
 

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;  
 

3. I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
 

(i)     Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India under the provisions of   
Companies Act, 2013; and 

 
During the period under review and as per the explanations and the clarifications given to me and the representation 
made by the Management of the Company, the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above to the extend applicable. 

 
I further report that; 
 
Adequate notice for the Board/Committee Meetings was given to all directors to schedule the Board/Committee 
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking 
and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
participation at the meeting. 
 
As represented by the Company and relied upon by me there are adequate systems and processes in the Company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, 
rules, regulations and guidelines. 
 
During the audit period the Company has passed Special Resolutions. However, which are not having major bearing on 
ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ŀŦŦŀƛǊǎ ƛƴ ǇǳǊǎǳŀƴŎŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŀōƻǾŜ ǊŜŦŜǊǊŜŘ ƭŀǿǎΣ ǊǳƭŜǎΣ ǊŜƎǳƭŀǘƛƻƴǎΣ ƎǳƛŘŜƭƛƴŜǎΣ ǎǘŀƴŘŀǊŘǎ ŜǘŎΦ  
 
During the audit period, there were no instances of: 

 
1. Public/Right/Preferential Issue of securities; 
2. Redemption/Buy Back of Securities; 
3. Merger/Amalgamation etc.; 
4. Foreign technical Collaborations 

 
The compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect tax laws, Accounting Standards etc. 
has not been reviewed in this Audit, since the same is subject to review by designated professional/s during the course 
of statutory financial audit. 

 
I further state that my report of even date is to be read alongwith ά!ƴƴŜȄǳǊŜ ς !έ appended hereto. 

 
FOR PAYAL TACHAK & ASSOCIATES 
Practicing Company Secretary 
 
 
CS PAYAL TACHAK 
Proprietor  
ACS 38016 
CP 15010 
 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 14.08.2018 
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ANNEXURE A 
 

To, 
The Members, 
Panache Innovations Limited 

 
My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

 
1.  Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. My 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit. 
 
2.   I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 

about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis 
to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and 
practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

 
3.   I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of 

the company. 
 
4.   Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, 

rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 
 
5.   The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards 

is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on 
test basis. 

 
6.  The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 

efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 
 
 
FOR PAYAL TACHAK & ASSOCIATES 
Practicing Company Secretary 
 
 
 
CS PAYAL TACHAK 
Proprietor  
ACS 38016 
CP 15010 
 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 14.08.2018 
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Annexure V to Directors Report 
 

Information under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of Companies Accounts) Rules 2014, 
ŀƴŘ ŦƻǊƳƛƴƎ ǇŀǊǘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊǎΩ wŜǇƻǊǘ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ ȅŜŀǊ ŜƴŘŜŘ омst March, 2018 

 
A. Conservation of Energy 

 

(i) the steps taken or impact on conservation of 

energy 

¢ƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴǎ ƛƴǾƻƭǾŜ ƭƻǿ ŜƴŜǊƎȅ consumption 

to run its office and therefore the scope of energy 

conservation is limited. The Company is taking all necessary 

measures for conservation of energy and creating awareness 

amongst the employees on the necessity of conservation of 

energy and the same is practiced regularly. 

(ii) the steps taken by the company for utilizing 

alternate sources of energy 

NIL 

(iii) the capital investment on energy conservation 

equipments 

NIL 

 
B. Technology absorption 

 

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption NIL 

(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, 

product development or import substitution 

NA 

(iii) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years 

reckoned from the beginning of the financial year)- 

NIL 

 

(a) the details of technology imported 

(b) the year of import; 

(c) whether the technology has been fully absorbed 

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, 

and the reasons thereof 

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development During the year under review, the 

Company has not undertaken Research 

and Development activity. 

 
C. Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo 

  (Rs. In Lacs) 

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17 

Foreign Exchange Earned Nil Nil 

Outgo of Foreign Exchange 8.51 0.83 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: 14/08/2018 

Place: Mumbai 

By order of the Board of Directors of  

Panache Innovations Limited 

 

 

____________________________ 

Amit Devchand Rambhia 

Chairman & Managing Director 

DIN: 00165919 
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Annexure VI to Directors Report 
 

FORM NO. MGT 9 
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

As on Financial Year ended on 31/03/2018 
of  

PANACHE INNOVATIONS LIMITED 
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & 

Administration) Rules, 2014. 
 

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS: 
 

1. 1 CIN L51100MH1981PLC312742 

2. 2 Registration Date 16/06/1981 

3. 3 Name of the Company Panache Innovations Limited 
(Formerly: Ruby Traders & Exporters Ltd) 

4. 4 Category/Sub-category of the Company Public Company limited by Shares 

5. 5 Address of the Registered office & contact 
details 

(A): 2nd Flr, Bldg No. A3, Unit 201A, Babosa Industrial, Park, 
Mumbai-Nashik Highway(NH3), Saravali Village, Bhiwandi, 
Thane 421302, Maharashtra, India.  
(E): info@panache.co.in 
(C): +91 98339 95555 
(W): www.panache.co.in 

6. 6 Whether listed company Yes 

7. 7 Name, Address & contact details of the 
Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any. 

Niche Technologies Private Limited  
(A): D-511, Bagree Market, 71 B.R.B. Basu Road, Kolkata-
700001 
(E): nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com 
(F): 033-2215 6823 
(C): 033-2235 7270/7271, 22343576 
(W): www.nichetechpl.com 

 
II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY  

(All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated) 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name and Description of main products / 
services 

NIC Code of the 
Product/service 
 
 

% to total turnover of the 
company 

1 Wholesale of machinery, equipment and 
supplies 

465 99% 

 
III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

 

 SN  Name and address of the Company  CIN / GLN Holding/ 
Subsidiary/ 
Associate 

% of Shares 
held 

Applicable 
section 

 1 Eddy and Andy International 
Limited 
13/F, Wah Kit Commercial Centre, 
300 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong 
Kong 
 

 

N.A. 
(Foreign Subsidiary) 

Subsidiary 100% Section 2(87) 

 2 Panache Innovations DMCC 
Unit No: 1807, DMCC Business 
Centre, Level No 1, Jewellery & 
Gemplex 3, Dubai, United Arab 
Emirates 

N.A. 
(Foreign Subsidiary) 

Subsidiary 100% Section 2(87) 
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) 
 

A. Category-wise Share Holding 
Category of 

shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the 

year 

No. of Shares held at the end of the year % Change 

during 

the year Demat Physical Total % of 

Total 

Shares 

Demat Physical Total % of 

Total 

Shares 

A. Promoters          

(1) Indian          

 a) Individual / HUF 1350100 0 1350100 30.754 1350100 0 1350100 30.754 0 

 b) Central 

Government 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 c) State 

Government 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 d) Bodies 

Corporate 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 e) Banks / 

Financial 

Institutions 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 f) Any Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 Sub-total (A)(1) 1350100 0 1350100 30.754 1350100 0 1350100 30.754 0 

           

(2) Foreign          

 a) NRIs - 

Individuals 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 b) Other - 

Individuals 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 c) Bodies 

Corporate 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 d) Banks / 

Financial 

Institutions 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 e) Any Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 Sub-total (A)(2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

           

 Total 

Shareholding of 

Promoter (A) = 

(A)(1)+(A)(2) 

1350100 0 1350100 30.754 1350100 0 1350100 30.754 0 

           

B. PUBLIC 

SHAREHOLDING 

         

(1) Institutions          

 a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 b) Banks / 

Financial 

Institutions 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 c) Central 

Governments 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 d) State 

Governments 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 e) Venture Capital 

Funds 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 f) Insurance 

Companies 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
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 g) Foreign 

Institutional 

Investors (FII) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 h) Foreign Venture 

Capital Funds 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 i) Others (Specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 Sub-total (B)(1) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - 

           

(2) Non-Institutions          

 a) Bodies 

Corporate          

 i)  Indian 750 0 750 0.017 373050 0 373050 8.498 8.481 

 ii) Overseas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 b) Individuals          

 i)  Individual 

shareholders 

holding nominal 

share capital upto 

Rs 1 lakh 

110238 85800 196038 4.466 125430 85800 211230 4.812 0.346 

 ii) Individual 

shareholders 

holding nominal 

share capital in 

excess of Rs 1 lakh 

2655095 0 2655095 60.481 2455420 0 2455420 55.932 -4.549 

 c) Others Specify 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 1. NRI 0 200 200 0.005 0 200 200 0.005 0.000 

 2. Overseas 

Corporate Bodies 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 3. Foreign 

Nationals 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 4. Clearing 

Members 

187817 0 187817 4.278 0 0 0 0 -4.278 

 

 5. Trusts 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 6. Foreign Bodies - 

D.R. 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 Sub-total (B)(2) 2953900 86000 3039900 69.246 2953900 86000 3039900 69.246 0.000 

           

 Total Public 

Shareholding (B) = 

(B)(1)+(B)(2) 

2953900 86000 3039900 69.246 2953900 86000 3039900 69.246 0.000 

           

C. Shares held by 

Custodian for 

GDRs & ADRs 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

           

 GRAND TOTAL 

(A+B+C) 

4304000 86000 4390000 100 4304000 86000 4390000 100 0 
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B. Shareholding of Promoter 
 

SN {ƘŀǊŜƘƻƭŘŜǊΩǎ 
Name 

Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year 

Shareholding at the end of the year % change 
in 
shareholdi
ng during 
the year 

  

  No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares of 
the 
company 

% of Shares 
Pledged / 
encumbere
d to total 
shares 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares of 
the 
company 

%of Shares 
Pledged / 
encumbere
d to total 
shares 

Promoter  

1 Amit D Rambhia 425100 9.683 0 425100 9.683 0 0.000 

2 Nikit D Rambhia 425000 9.681 0 425000 9.681 0 0.000 

3 
Devchand L 
Rambhia 500000 11.390 0 500000 11.390 0 0.000 

 
C. /ƘŀƴƎŜ ƛƴ tǊƻƳƻǘŜǊǎΩ {ƘŀǊŜƘƻƭŘƛƴƎ όǇƭŜŀǎŜ ǎǇŜŎƛŦȅΣ ƛŦ ǘƘŜǊŜ ƛǎ no change) 
 

  

S

N 

Name of the 

Shareholders 

Shareholding at 

the beginning of 

the year 

Change during the year Cumulative 

Shareholding 

during the year 

Shareholding at 

the End of the year 

No. of 

Shares 

% of 

total 

Shares of 

Compan

y 

Date of  

increas

e or 

decreas

e  

No. of 

Shares 

% of 

total 

Shares of 

Compan

y 

Rea

son 

No. of 

Shares  

% of 

total 

Shares of 

Compan

y 

No. of 

Shares  

% of 

total 

Shares of 

Compan

y 

1 Amit D 

Rambhia 425100 9.683 
No Change during the year 

425100 9.683 

2 Nikit D 

Rambhia 425000 9.681 
No Change during the year 

425000 9.681 

3 Devchand L 

Rambhia 500000 11.390 
No Change during the year 

500000 11.390 

 
D. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders: (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): 

 
SN  Name of 

the 

Shareholde

rs 

Shareholding at 

the beginning of 

the year 

Change during the year Cumulative 

Shareholding 

during the year 

Shareholding 

at the End of 

the year 

No. of 

Shares 

% of 

total 

Shares 

of the 

Compan

y 

Date of 

increase or 

decrease  

No. of 

Shares 

% of 

total 

Shares 

of the 

Compa

ny 

Reason No. of 

Shares  

% of 

total 

Shares 

of the 

Compa

ny 

No. of 

Shares 

% of 

total 

Share

s of 

the 

Comp

any 

1 

Aakash 

Deepak 

Savla 

110000 2.506 

12/05/2017 

26/05/2017 

23/06/2017 

30/06/2017 

15/09/2017 

22/09/2017 

30/09/2017 

06/10/2017 

27/10/2017 

10/11/2017 

17/11/2017 

15/12/2017 

-13000 

-29003 

-997 

-5050 

3350 

2099 

200 

100 

698 

200 

1300 

2500 

0.296 

0.661 

0.023 

0.115 

0.076 

0.048 

0.005 

0.002 

0.016 

0.005 

0.03 

0.057 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

97000 

67997 

67000 

61950 

65300 

67399 

67599 

67699 

68397 

68597 

69897 

72397 

2.21 

1.549 

1.526 

1.411 

1.487 

1.535 

1.54 

1.542 

1.558 

1.563 

1.592 

1.649 

74397 1.695 
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22/12/2017 

19/01/2018 

1000 

1000 

0.023 

0.023 

Transfer 

Transfer 

73397 

74397 

1.672 

1.695 

2 

Ambe 

Projects 

Limited 

0 0 

05/05/2017 

12/05/2017 

23/06/2017 

23/03/2018 

20000 

60000 

53000 

100 

0.456 

1.367 

1.207 

0.002 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

20000 

80000 

133000 

133100 

0.456 

1.822 

3.03 

3.032 

13310

0 
3.032 

3 

Anurodh 

Merchandi

se Pvt Ltd 

0 0 

26/05/2017 

26/01/2018 

09/03/2018 

75000 

10100 

100 

1.708 

0.23 

0.002 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

75000 

85100 

85200 

1.708 

1.938 

1.941 

85200 1.941 

4 

Arihant 

Capital 

Markets 

Ltd 

186734 4.254 

07/04/2017 

30/09/2017 

03/11/2017 

15/12/2017 

22/12/2017 

19/01/2018 

02/02/2018 

16/02/2018 

-111734 

-12000 

-63000 

20000 

-1000 

-1000 

-2000 

-16000 

2.545 

0.273 

1.435 

0.456 

0.023 

0.023 

0.046 

0.364 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

75000 

63000 

0 

20000 

19000 

18000 

16000 

0 

1.708 

1.435 

0.000 

0.456 

0.433 

0.41 

0.364 

0 

0 0.000 

5 

Bhavini 

Sanjay 

Sheth 

95000 2.164 No Change during the year 95000 2.164 

6 

Chetan 

Nanji 

Dedhia 

100000 2.278 16/06/2017 -100 0.002 Transfer 99900 2.276 99900 2.276 

7 

Chetna 

Chetan 

Dedhia 

100000 2.278 16/06/2017 -100 0.002 Transfer 99900 2.276 99900 2.276 

8 

Deepak 

Meghji 

Savla 

135000 3.075 

26/05/2017 

02/06/2017 

09/06/2017 

16/06/2017 

23/06/2017 

14/07/2017 

28/07/2017 

15/09/2017 

30/09/2017 

10/11/2017 

17/11/2017 

15/12/2017 

02/02/2018 

-55000 

-19000 

-17500 

-29800 

-13700 

200 

1000 

1850 

100 

2200 

800 

2500 

2000 

1.253 

0.433 

0.399 

0.679 

0.312 

0.005 

0.023 

0.042 

0.002 

0.05 

0.018 

0.057 

0.046 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

80000 

61000 

43500 

13700 

0 

200 

1200 

3050 

3150 

5350 

6150 

8650 

10650 

1.822 

1.39 

0.991 

0.312 

0.00 

0.005 

0.027 

0.069 

0.072 

0.122 

0.14 

0.197 

0.243 

10650 0.243 

9 Geetha Jain 150000 3.417 10/11/2017 -150000 3.417 Transfer 0 0.000 0 0.000 

10 

Kamalesh 

Shantilalji 

Jain 

150000 3.417 

28/04/2017 

26/05/2017 

16/06/2017 

-8000 

-80000 

-62000 

0.182 

1.822 

1.412 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

142000 

62000 

0 

3.235 

1.412 

0.000 

0 0.000 

11 

Madhuben 

Babulal 

Patel 

0 0.000 07/07/2017 113650 2.589 Transfer 113650 2.589 
11365

0 
2.589 

12 

Mahendra 

M Mehta 

HUF 

100000 2.278 

14/07/2017 

15/09/2017 

22/09/2017 

-100 

-2000 

-800 

0.002 

0.046 

0.018 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

99900 

97900 

97100 

2.276 

2.23 

2.212 

97100 2.212 

13 

Meenakshi 

Enterprises 

Ltd 

0 0.000 
10/11/2017 

17/11/2017 

100000 

50000 

2.278 

1.139 

Transfer 

Transfer 

100000 

150000 

2.278 

3.417 

15000

0 
3.417 

14 
Pratyush 

Bhartiya 
102000 2.323 

26/05/2017 -75000 1.708 Transfer 27000 0.615 
27000 0.615 

15 
Sanjay V 

Sheth 
95000 2.164 No Change during the year 95000 2.164 
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16 Sejal J Shah 36446 0.83 

07/04/2017 

22/09/2017 

30/09/2017 

06/10/2017 

27/10/2017 

03/11/2017 

24/11/2017 

48000 

805 

803 

265 

1000 

10000 

7653 

1.093 

0.018 

0.018 

0.006 

0.023 

0.228 

0.174 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

Transfer 

84446 

85251 

86054 

86319 

87319 

97319 

104972 

1.924 

1.942 

1.96 

1.966 

1.989 

2.217 

2.391 

10497

2 
2.391 

 

E. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
 

S 

N 

Name of 

the 

Sharehold

er 

Shareholding at the 

beginning of the 

year 

Change during the year Cumulative 

Shareholding 

during the year 

Shareholding at the 

End of the year 

No. of 

Shares 

% of total 

Shares of 

the 

Company 

Date of 

increase 

or 

decrease  

No. of 

Shares 

% of total 

Shares of 

the 

Company 

Reaso

n 

No. of 

Shares  

% of total 

Shares of 

the 

Company 

No. of 

Shares  

% of total 

Shares of 

the 

Company 

1 Amit D 

Rambhia 

425100 9.683 No Change during the year 425100 9.683 

 
V. INDEBTEDNESS  

 
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment. 

Particulars Secured Loans 
excluding deposits 

Unsecured 
Loans 

Deposits Total 
Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the 
financial year 

--- NIL --- 
i) Principal Amount 

ii) Interest due but not paid 

iii) Interest accrued but not paid 

Total (i+ii+iii) 

Change in Indebtedness during the 
financial year 

--- NIL --- Addition 

Reduction 

Net Change 

Indebtedness at the end of the financial 
year 

--- NIL --- 
i) Principal Amount 

ii) Interest due but not paid  

iii) Interest accrued but not due 

Total (i+ii+iii) 
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: 
(In Rs.) 

Sr. 

No. 

Particulars of Remuneration Amit D Rambhia 

(Chairman & Managing 

Director 

Jayachandran Sunderamoorthy 

Whole-Time Director & Chief 

Financial Officer 

Total Amount 

1 

 

 

 

Gross Salary    

(a) Salary as per provisions 

contained in section 17(1) of 

the Income-tax Act, 1961 

6,00,000 27,82,584 33,82,584 

 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 

17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 

- - - 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary 

under section 17(3) Income- 

tax Act, 1961 

- - - 

2 Stock Option - - - 

3 Sweat Equity - - - 

4 Commission 

-   as % of profit 

-   others, specify 

- - - 

5 Others, please specify - - - 

 Total  6,00,000 27,82,584 33,82,584 

 
B. Remuneration to other directors:  

(In Rs.) 

Sr. No. Particulars of Remuneration Rohit Mathur Meeta K. Mehta Total Amount 

1 Independent Directors    

 (a) Fee for attending board / committee 

meetings 

24,000 38,000 62,000 

 (b) Commission - - - 

 (c) Others, please specify - - - 

Total (1) 24,000 38,000 62,000 

2 Other Non-Executive Directors    

 (a) Fee for attending board / committee 

meetings 

- - - 

 (b) Commission - - - 

 (c) Others, please specify - - - 

Total (2) - - - 

Total (1)+(2) 24,000 38,000 62,000 
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD /Manager /WTD:  
(In Rs.) 

Sr. 

No. 

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel 

Priyank Sangoi  

CS & Compliance Officer 

S. Jayachandran  

WTD & CFO 

Total Amount 

1 

 

 

 

Gross Salary    

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 

section 17(1) of the Income tax Act, 1961 

1,34,663 27,82,584 29,17,247 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-

tax Act, 1961 

- - - 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 

17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961 

- - - 

2 Stock Option - - - 

3 Sweat Equity - - - 

4 Commission 

-   as % of profit 

-   others, specify 

- - - 

5 Others, please specify - - - 

 Total  1,34,663 27,82,584 29,17,247 

 
VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 

Type Section of the 
Companies Act 

Brief 
Description 

Details of Penalty 
/ Punishment/ 
Compounding 
fees imposed 

Authority 
[RD / NCLT/ 
COURT] 

Appeal 
made, 
if any (give 
Details) 

A. COMPANY 

Penalty Sec 220(3) of the 
Companies Act, 
1956 

C.C. No. 6330A/14 of 
2014: Non- filing of 
Balance sheet and 
Profit & loss Account as 
at 31/03/2013 with ROC 

Fine of Rs. 500/- 
each 

Chief Judicial 
Magistrate Court, 
Alipore 

No 

 Sec 220(3) of the 
Companies Act, 
1956 

C.C. No. C/2523/14 of 
2014: Non- filing of 
Balance sheet and 
Profit & loss Account as 
at 31/03/2012 with ROC 

Fine of Rs. 500/- 
each 

Chief Judicial 
Magistrate Court, 
Alipore 

No 

Punishment 
NIL 

Compounding 

*B. DIRECTORS 

Penalty 

NIL Punishment 

Compounding 

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT 

Penalty 

NIL Punishment 

Compounding 
* Penalty imposed on Mr. Ramrati Choudhury, the then Director of the Company who is no more associated with the Company - C.C. No. 6330A/14 of 2014 
* Penalty imposed on Mr. Rajnish Parolia, Mr. Ratan Pandit, Mr. Sovon Chakraborty, Mr. Nishant Kothari the then Directors of the Company who are no 
more associated with the Company - C.C. No. C/2523/14 of 2014 

 
 
 
 
 
Date: 14/08/2018 
Place: Mumbai 

By order of the Board of Directors of  
Panache Innovations Limited 

 
____________________________ 

Amit Devchand Rambhia 
Chairman & Managing Director 

DIN: 00165919 
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Annexure VII to Directors Report 
 

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEE REMUNERATION 
 

Information as per Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014: 

 

Sr. 

No.  

Particulars Details 

1 The ratio of the remuneration of each director to 

the median employees of the Company for the 

financial year 

ü Mr. Jayachandran Sunderamoorthyς 9.28x 

ü Mr. Amit Rambhia ς 2.00x 

2 The percentage increase in remuneration of each 

director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive 

Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in 

the financial year 

ü There has been no increase in the remuneration of Mr. 

Amit Rambhia, Managing Director of the Company. 

ü There has been no increase in the remuneration of Mr. 

Jayachandran Sunderamoorthy, Whole-Time Director & 

CFO of the Company. 

ü Mr. Priyank Sangoi was appointed as the Company 

Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company and was 

paid remuneration for the first time during the financial 

year and thus the details of increase in remuneration 

cannot be calculated. 

3 The percentage increase in the median 

remuneration of employees in the financial year 

ü There has been no percentage increase in the median 

remuneration of employees in the financial year. 

4 The number of permanent employees on the 

rolls of company 

ü As on 31st March, 2018, there were 7 employees on the rolls 

of the Company. 

5 Average percentile increase already made in the 

salaries of employees other than the managerial 

personnel in the last financial year and its 

comparison with the percentile increase in the 

managerial remuneration and justification 

thereof and any exceptional circumstances for 

increase in the managerial remuneration 

ü There has been a decrease in the remuneration of both other 

than Managerial personnel and Managerial Personnel to the 

extent of 13-15%. 

6 Remuneration is as per the remuneration policy 

of the company. 

ü It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the 

remuneration policy of the Company. 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: 14/08/2018 

Place: Mumbai 

By order of the Board of Directors of  

Panache Innovations Limited 

 

 

____________________________ 

Amit Devchand Rambhia 

Chairman & Managing Director 

DIN: 00165919 
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Annexure VIII to Directors Report 
 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY 
 

This Nomination and Remuneration Policy is being formulated in compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read along with the applicable rules thereto. This policy on nomination and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and Senior Management has been formulated and approved by the Board of Directors. 

 
1. DEFINITIONS 

 
άwŜƳǳƴŜǊŀǘƛƻƴέ means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services rendered by him 
and includes perquisites as defined under the Incomeπtax Act, 1961; 
 
άYŜȅ aŀƴŀƎŜǊƛŀƭ tŜǊǎƻƴƴŜƭέ means: 
 

i. Managing Director, or Chief Executive Officer or Manager and in their absence, a Wholeπtime Director; 
 

ii. Chief Financial Officer; 
 

iii. Company Secretary; and 
 

iv. Such other officer as may be prescribed. 
 
ά{ŜƴƛƻǊ aŀƴŀƎŜǊƛŀƭ tŜǊǎƻƴƴŜƭέ means the personnel of the company who are members of its core management 
team excluding Board of Directors. Normally, this would comprise all members of management, of rank equivalent 
to Departmental/Functional Head.  
 

2. OBJECTIVE 
 
The objective of the policy is to ensure that 
 

i. the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate 
5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊǎΣ YŜȅ aŀƴŀƎŜǊƛŀƭ tŜǊǎƻƴƴŜƭΩǎ ŀƴŘ {ŜƴƛƻǊ aŀƴŀƎŜǊƛŀƭ tŜǊǎƻƴƴŜƭΩǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ǉǳŀƭƛǘȅ ƻŦ ǿƻǊƪ ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜŘ ǘƻ 
run the company successfully; 

 
ii. relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and 

 
iii. remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance between 

fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and longπterm performance objectives appropriate to the working of 
the company and its goals. 

 
3. ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE 

 
The role of the NRC will be the following: 
 

i. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director 
and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the level and composition of remuneration of the directors, 
key managerial personnel and other employees; 

 
ii. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of independent directors and the Board; 

 
iii. To ensure that the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance 

benchmarks; 
 

iv. Deciding on, whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the 
basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors; 
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v. Decide the salary, allowances, perquisites, bonuses, notice period, severance fees and increment of 
Executive Directors; 

 
vi. Define and implement the Performance Linked Incentive Scheme (including ESOP of the Company) and 

evaluate the performance and determine the amount of incentive of the Executive Directors for that 
purpose; 

 
vii. Decide the amount of Commission payable to the Whole-Time Director / Managing Directors; 

 
viii. Review and suggest revision of the total remuneration package of the Executive Directors keeping in view 

the performance of the Company, standards prevailing in the industry, statutory guidelines etc. 
 

ix. To formulate and administer the Employee Stock Option Scheme; 
 

x. Devising a policy on Board diversity; and 
 

xi. Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management 
in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal. 

 
4. APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 

 
i. The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the 

person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend his / her 
ŀǇǇƻƛƴǘƳŜƴǘΣ ŀǎ ǇŜǊ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ tƻƭƛŎȅΦ 

 
ii. A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he / she is 

considered for appointment. The Committee has authority to decide whether qualification, expertise and 
experience possessed by a person is sufficient / satisfactory for the position. 

 
iii. The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Whole-time Director who has 

attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding his position may be extended 
beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution. 

 
5. TERM / TENURE 

 
i. Managing Director/Wholeπtime Director: 

 
The Company shall appoint or reπappoint any person as its Executive Chairman, Managing Director or 
Executive Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No reappointment shall be made earlier 
than one year before the expiry of term.  

 
ii. Independent Director: 

 
An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of the 
Company and will be eligible for reπappointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company and 
disclosure of such apǇƻƛƴǘƳŜƴǘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ .ƻŀǊŘΩǎ ǊŜǇƻǊǘΦ 
 
No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms of upto maximum of 5 years 
each, but such Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing 
to become an Independent Director.  
 
Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years, be appointed in or be 
associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly. 
 
At the time of appointment of Independent Director, it should be ensured that number of Boards on which 
such Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an Independent Director and 
three listed companies as an Independent Director in case such person is serving as a Wholeπtime Director 
of a listed company or such other number as may be prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015.  
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6. EVALUATION  
 
The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel 
yearly or at such intervals as may be considered necessary. 
 

7. REMOVAL 
 
The Committee may recommend with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior 
Management Personnel subject to the provisions and compliance of the Companies Act, 2013, rules and regulations 
and the policy of the Company. 
 

8. RETIREMENT 
 
The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the Director, KMP, 
Senior Management Personnel in the same position/ remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement 
age, for the benefit of the Company. 
 

9. POLICY FOR REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS/KMP/SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 
 

i. Remuneration to Managing Director / Wholeπtime Directors: 
 

a. The Remuneration/ Commission etc. to be paid to Managing Director / Whole-time Directors, etc. shall 
be governed as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder or any other 
enactment for the time being in force and the approvals obtained from the Members of the Company. 

 
b. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall make such recommendations to the Board of 

Directors, as it may consider appropriate with regard to remuneration to Managing Director / Wholeπ
Time Directors. 

 
ii. wŜƳǳƴŜǊŀǘƛƻƴ ǘƻ bƻƴπ9ȄŜŎǳǘƛǾŜ κ LƴŘŜǇŜƴŘŜƴǘ 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊǎΥ 

 
a. The NonπExecutive / Independent Directors may receive sitting fees and such other remuneration as 

permissible under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The amount of sitting fees shall be such as 
may be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of 
Directors. 

 
b. All the remuneration of the NonπExecutive / Independent Directors (excluding remuneration for 

attending meetings as prescribed under Section 197 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013) shall be subject to 
ceiling/ limits as provided under Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other 
enactment for the time being in force. The amount of such remuneration shall be such as may be 
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of 
Directors or shareholders, as the case may be. 

 
c. An Independent Director shall not be eligible to get Stock Options and also shall not be eligible to 

participate in any share based payment schemes of the Company. 
 
d. Any remuneration paid to Nonπ Executive / Independent Directors for services rendered which are of 

professional in nature shall not be considered as part of the remuneration for the purposes of clause (b) 
above if the following conditions are satisfied: 

 

¶ The Services are rendered by such Director in his capacity as the professional; and 
 

¶ In the opinion of the Committee, the director possesses the requisite qualification for the practice 
of that profession. 
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iii. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management: 
 

a. The remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management may consist of fixed pay and 
incentive pay, in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with the 
/ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ tolicy. 

 
b. ¢ƘŜ CƛȄŜŘ Ǉŀȅ ǎƘŀƭƭ ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜ ƳƻƴǘƘƭȅ ǊŜƳǳƴŜǊŀǘƛƻƴ ŀƴŘ Ƴŀȅ ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜ ŜƳǇƭƻȅŜǊΩǎ ŎƻƴǘǊƛōǳǘƛƻƴ ǘƻ tǊƻǾƛŘŜƴǘ 

Fund, contribution to pension fund, pension schemes, etc. as decided from time to time. 
 
c. The Incentive pay shall be decided based on the balance between performance of the Company and 

performance of the Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management, to be decided annually or at 
such intervals as may be considered appropriate. 

 
10. IMPLEMENTATION 

 
i. The clauses of policy shall be applicable as far as they are mandatory under the governing laws. In case if 

there is an exemption to company as per governing regarding implementation of the clause, it shall be 
voluntary for the Company to implement such a clause.  

 
ii. The Committee may issue guidelines, procedures, formats, reporting mechanism and manuals in supplement 

and for better implementation of this policy as considered appropriate. 
 

iii. The Committee may delegate any of its powers to one or more of its members. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: 14/08/2018 

Place: Mumbai 

By order of the Board of Directors of  

Panache Innovations Limited 

 

 

____________________________ 

Amit Devchand Rambhia 

Chairman & Managing Director 

DIN: 00165919 
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Standalone Financial Statements 
 

Lb59t9b59b¢ !¦5L¢hwΩ{ w9thw¢ 
 

To, 
The Shareholders of  
Panache Innovations Limited, 
(Formerly Known as Ruby Traders & Exporters Limited) 
68, Jessore Road, Diamond City Complex, 
Block 5, Suite No.1E, 
Kolkata, West Bengal - 700055. 
 
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying StandŀƭƻƴŜ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎ ƻŦ tŀƴŀŎƘŜ LƴƴƻǾŀǘƛƻƴ [ƛƳƛǘŜŘ όΨǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩύ 
(Formerly Known as Ruby Traders & Exporters Limited) which comprise the `Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2018, 
Statement of Profit and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the 
Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 
 
aŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘΩǎ wŜǎǇƻƴǎƛōƛƭƛǘȅ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ {ǘŀƴŘŀƭƻƴŜ CƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ {ǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎ 
¢ƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ .ƻŀǊŘ ƻŦ 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊǎ ƛǎ ǊŜǎǇƻƴǎƛōƭŜ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ ƳŀǘǘŜǊǎ ǎǘŀǘŜŘ ƛƴ {ŜŎǘƛƻƴ мопόрύ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴƛŜǎ !ŎǘΣ нлмо όάǘƘŜ 
!Ŏǘέύ ǿƛǘƘ ǊŜǎǇŜŎǘ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ǇǊŜǇŀǊŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ǘƘŜǎŜ ǎǘŀƴŘŀƭƻƴŜ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎ ǘƘŀǘ ƎƛǾŜ ŀ ǘǊǳŜ ŀƴŘ ŦŀƛǊ ǾƛŜǿ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀl 
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company 
ƛƴ ŀŎŎƻǊŘŀƴŎŜ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ LƴŘƛŀƴ !ŎŎƻǳƴǘƛƴƎ {ǘŀƴŘŀǊŘǎ όάLb5 !{έύ ǎǇŜŎƛŦƛŜŘ ǳƴŘŜǊ ǎŜŎǘƛƻƴ моо ƻŦ ǘƘŜ !ŎǘΣ ǊŜŀŘ ǿƛǘƘ ǊǳƭŜ т ƻŦ 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India.  
 
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 
 
!ǳŘƛǘƻǊΩǎ wŜǎǇƻƴǎƛōƛƭƛǘȅ 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Standalone Financial Statements based on our audit.  
 
In conducting our audit we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and 
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the rules made 
thereunder and the Order issued under sec 143(11) of the Act. 
 
We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified 
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements are free from material 
misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the Standalone 
Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on tƘŜ ŀǳŘƛǘƻǊΩǎ ƧǳŘƎƳŜƴǘΣ ƛƴŎƭǳŘƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ŀǎǎŜǎǎƳŜƴǘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ Ǌƛǎƪǎ 
of material misstatement of the StandaloneFinancial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the CƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ǇǊŜǇŀǊŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ {ǘŀƴŘŀƭƻƴŜ 
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of the accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Standalone 
Financial Statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on standalone financial statements. 
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Opinion 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Standalone Financial 
Statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view, in conformity 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2018, 
and its profit, total comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year end on that date. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purpose of our audit; 
 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books; 
 

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account; 
 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder;  
 

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31st March 2018, and taken on record 
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March 2018, from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013; and 
 

f. With respect to adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company and the 
operating effŜŎǘƛǾŜƴŜǎǎ ƻŦ ǎǳŎƘ ŎƻƴǘǊƻƭǎΣ ǊŜŦŜǊ ǘƻ ƻǳǘ ǎŜǇŀǊŀǘŜ ǊŜǇƻǊǘ ƛƴ Ψ!ƴƴŜȄǳǊŜ-!ΩΦ hǳǊ ǊŜǇƻǊǘ ŜȄǇǊŜǎǎ ŀƴ 
ǳƴƳƻŘƛŦƛŜŘ ƻǇƛƴƛƻƴ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ŀŘŜǉǳŀŎȅ ŀƴŘ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƴƎ ŜŦŦŜŎǘƛǾŜƴŜǎǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ƛƴǘŜǊƴŀƭ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ŎƻƴǘǊƻƭǎ 
over financial reporting; 
 

g. With respect to the otheǊ ƳŀǘǘŜǊǎ ǘƻ ōŜ ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ !ǳŘƛǘƻǊΩǎ wŜǇƻǊǘ ƛƴ ŀŎŎƻǊŘŀƴŎŜ ǿƛǘƘ wǳƭŜ мм ƻŦ ǘƘŜ 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to explanations given to us: 

 
(i) The Company has disclosed that there are no pending litigations which would impact its standalone 

financial statements. 
  

(ii) The Company did not have any long term contracts for which there were any material foreseeable 
losses; 
 

(iii) The Company is not required to transfer any amount to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by 
the Company. 

 
2. !ǎ ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜŘ ōȅ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴƛŜǎ ό!ǳŘƛǘƻǊΩǎ wŜǇƻǊǘύ hǊŘŜǊΣ нлмс ƛǎǎǳŜŘ ōȅ ǘƘŜ /ŜƴǘǊŀƭ DƻǾŜǊƴƳŜƴǘ ƻŦ LƴŘƛŀ ƛƴ ǘŜǊƳǎ ƻŦ 
{ŜŎǘƛƻƴ мпоόммύ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴƛŜǎ !ŎǘΣ нлмоΣ ǿŜ ŜƴŎƭƻǎŜ ƘŜǊŜǿƛǘƘΤ Ψ!ƴƴŜȄǳǊŜς.ΩΣ ŀ statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Order. 

       
                                                            For Jain Salia & Associates 
 Chartered Accountants 
 [ ICAI FRNo: 116291W] 
  

 
                             Partner 
Place: Mumbai        (CA Jayesh K. Salia) 
Dated: 30.05.2018                                                             (Membership No. 044039) 
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ANNEXURE -! ¢h ¢I9 !¦5L¢hwΩ{ w9thw¢ Chw ¢I9 ¸Φ 9Φ омST MARCH, 2018 

(Referred to in Paragraph (1) of our Report of even date) 
 
 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
όάǘƘŜ !Ŏǘέύ 
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Panache Innovations LimitŜŘ όάǘƘŜ 
/ƻƳǇŀƴȅέύ(Formerly known as Ruby Traders & Exporters Limited) as of 31st March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of 
the Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

 
aŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘΩǎ wŜǎǇƻƴǎƛōƛƭƛǘȅ ŦƻǊ LƴǘŜǊƴal Financial Controls 

 
¢ƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ ƛǎ ǊŜǎǇƻƴǎƛōƭŜ ŦƻǊ ŜǎǘŀōƭƛǎƘƛƴƎ ŀƴŘ ƳŀƛƴǘŀƛƴƛƴƎ ƛƴǘŜǊƴŀƭ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ŎƻƴǘǊƻƭǎ ōŀǎŜŘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
ōǳǎƛƴŜǎǎΣ ƛƴŎƭǳŘƛƴƎ ŀŘƘŜǊŜƴŎŜ ǘƻ ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ǇƻƭƛŎƛŜǎΣ ǘƘŜ ǎŀŦŜƎǳŀǊŘƛƴƎ ƻŦ ƛǘǎ ŀǎǎŜǘǎΣ ǘƘŜ ǇǊŜǾŜƴǘƛƻƴ ŀƴŘ ŘŜǘŜŎǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ŦǊŀǳŘǎ 
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
!ǳŘƛǘƻǊǎΩ wŜǎǇƻƴǎƛōƛƭƛǘȅ 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
CƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ wŜǇƻǊǘƛƴƎ όǘƘŜ άDǳƛŘŀƴŎŜ bƻǘŜέύ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ {ǘŀƴŘŀǊŘǎ ƻƴ !ǳŘƛǘƛƴƎΣ ƛǎǎǳŜŘ ōȅ L/!L ŀƴŘ deemed to be prescribed 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that 
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on 
ǘƘŜ ŀǎǎŜǎǎŜŘ ǊƛǎƪΦ ¢ƘŜ ǇǊƻŎŜŘǳǊŜǎ ǎŜƭŜŎǘŜŘ ŘŜǇŜƴŘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ŀǳŘƛǘƻǊΩǎ ƧǳŘƎƳŜƴǘΣ ƛƴŎƭǳŘƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ŀǎǎŜǎǎƳŜƴǘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ Ǌƛǎƪǎ ƻŦ 
material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
ƻƴ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ƛƴǘŜǊƴŀƭ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ŎƻƴǘǊƻƭǎ ǎȅǎǘŜƳ ƻǾŜǊ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǊŜǇƻǊǘƛƴƎΦ 

 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that  

 
(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 

dispositions of the assets of the company;  
 

(2)  provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone Ind 
AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors 
of the company; and  
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(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone Ind AS financial statements. 

 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not 
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 
Opinion 

 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 2018, 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

 
 

 For Jain Salia & Associates 
 Chartered Accountants 
 [ ICAI FRNo: 116291W] 
  

 
 Partner 

Place  : Place: Mumbai (CA Jayesh K. Salia) 
Dated : Dated: 30.05.2018 (Membership No. 044039) 
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ANNEXURE - . ¢h ¢I9 !¦5L¢hwΩ{ w9thw¢ Chw ¢I9 ¸Φ 9Φ омST MARCH, 2018 

(Referred to in Paragraph (2) of our Report of even date) 

 
(i)  

a) The Company has generally maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 
situation of fixed assets. 

 
b) The fixed assets are physically verified by the management in a phased manner; which in our opinion is 

reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, all 
the fixed assets were physically verified by the management during the year. According to the information and 
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

 
c) Based on the information & explanation given to us and the records examined by us we are able to conclude that 

there are no immovable property held by the company as on the reporting date. 
 
(ii) The physical verification of inventory & spares has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management and 

no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification between physical stock and book records. 
 
(iii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any loans, 

secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 
of the Companies Act, 2013.  

 
(iv) In respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 have been duly complied. 
 
(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the 

public to which the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Section 73 to Section 76 or 
any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under are applicable. 

 
(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to maintain any cost 

records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
(vii)  

a. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is regular in depositing undisputed 
statutory dues including provident fund, Income tax, VAT, CST, custom duty, cess and any other statutory dues 
with the appropriate authorities during the year. 
 

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of such 
statutory dues were outstanding, as on 31st March, 2017 for a period of more than six months from the date they 
became payable. 

 
(viii) On the basis of our examination and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 

not defaulted in re-payment of its dues to the Banks and no amounts were borrowed by the Company through 
Debentures from any financial institution. 

 
(ix) On the basis of our examination and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 

not raised any money through Initial Public Offer (IPO) or Further Public Offer (FPO) in the current year. 
 
(x) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud 

on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit. 
 
(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has paid/provided 

managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 
read with Schedule V of the Act. 

 
(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company is not a nidhi company 

and hence reporting under paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to our company. 
 



 

Annual Report 2017-18  |  39 
 

(xiii) All the transactions with related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where 
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting 
standards. 

 
(xiv) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 

debentures during the year under review. 
 
 
(xv) The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. 
 
(xvi) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
 
 
 

 For Jain Salia & Associates 
 Chartered Accountants 
 [ ICAI FRNo: 116291W] 
  

 
 Partner 

Place: Mumbai (CA Jayesh K. Salia) 
Dated: 30.05.2018 (Membership No. 044039) 
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Balance Sheet 

 
 

As per our report of even date              For and on behalf of Board of Directors, Panache Innovations Limited 
For JAIN SALIA & ASSOCIATES,  
Chartered Accountants 

 
 

[ICAI FRNo. 116291W] Mr. Amit D. Rambhia Mr. Jayachandran Sunderamoorthy 
 Managing Director Whole-Time Director & CFO 
CA JAYESH K. SALIA DINo:- 00165919 DINo:- 07706021 
Partner   
(Mem No. 044039)  Mr. Priyank Sangoi 
  Company Secretary 
Place: Mumbai                      Place: Mumbai Mem. No. A50896 
Dated: 30.05.2018                  Dated: 30.05.2018  

(All amounts in INR)

Sr. No.
NOTE 

NO.

AS AT 

31ST MARCH 

2018

AS AT 

31ST MARCH 

2017

AS AT 

01ST APRIL 

2016

I. ASSETS

1 NON-CURRENT ASSETS

(a) Property, Plant & Equipments É 2 12,752 15,639 42,722

(b) Capital Work-In-Progress É 0 0 0

(c) Investment Properties É 0 0 0

(d) Goodwill É 0 0 0

(e) Other Intangible Assets É 3 6,46,000 7,00,000 8,00,000

(f) Intangible Assets Under Development É 0 0 0

(g) Biological Assets Other than Bearer Plants É 0 0 0

(h) Investments Accounted for Using the equity methodÉ 0 0 0

(i) Financial Assets

  ( i ) Investments É 4 1,12,54,026 1,35,38,756 2,93,24,345

  ( ii ) Loans É 5 1,84,02,543 0 0

  ( iii ) Other Financial Assets É 0 0 0

(j) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) É 0 0 0

(k) Other Non-Current Assets É 6 28,000 4,77,318 10,78,128

2 CURRENT ASSETS

(a) Inventories É 7 13,14,984 3,37,91,724 8,75,407

(b) Financial Assets

  ( i ) Investments É 0 0 0

  ( ii ) Trade Receivables É 8 12,32,67,229 8,76,71,323 36,46,062

  ( iii ) Cash and Cash Equivalents É 9 1,91,718 6,46,226 31,50,309

  ( iv ) Bank Balances other than (iii) above É 0 0 0

  ( v ) Loans É 10 49,96,997 1,39,79,642 1,56,35,771

  ( vi ) Other Financial Assets É 0 0 0

(c) Other Current Assets É 11 74,04,518 6,87,010 5,37,010

TOTAL ASSETS 16,75,18,767 15,15,07,639 5,50,89,754

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1 EQUITY

(a) Equity Share Capital É 12 4,39,00,000 4,39,00,000 4,39,00,000

(b) Other Equity É 13 (83,58,458) (84,34,530) 78,34,445

2 LIABILITIES

   A Non-Current Liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

  ( i ) Borrowings É 0 0 0

  ( ii ) Trade Payables É 0 0 0

  ( iii ) Other Financial Liabilities É 0 0 0

(b) Provisions É 0 0 0

(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities(Net) É 14 84,638 1,01,594 85,198

(d) Other Non-Current Liabilities É 0 0 0

   B Current Liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

  ( i ) Borrowings É 15 0 0 2,875

  ( ii ) Trade Payables É 16 11,93,28,769 10,98,75,049 13,06,786

  ( iii ) Other Financial Liabilities É 0 0 0

(b) Other Current Liabilities É 17 19,70,590 13,00,645 6,49,056

(c) Provisions É 18 5,39,739 20,15,041 0

(d) Current Tax Liabilities(Net) É 19 1,00,53,489 27,49,839 13,11,394

TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 16,75,18,767 15,15,07,639 5,50,89,754

PARTICULARS

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2018
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Statement on Profit & Loss   

  
 

As per our report of even date              For and on behalf of Board of Directors, Panache Innovations Limited 
For JAIN SALIA & ASSOCIATES,  
Chartered Accountants 

 
 

[ICAI FRNo. 116291W] Mr. Amit D. Rambhia Mr. Jayachandran Sunderamoorthy 
 Managing Director Whole-Time Director & CFO 
CA JAYESH K. SALIA DINo:- 00165919 DINo:- 07706021 
Partner   
(Mem No. 044039)  Mr. Priyank Sangoi 
  Company Secretary 
Place: Mumbai                      Place: Mumbai Mem. No. A50896 
Dated: 30.05.2018                  Dated: 30.05.2018  

 

(All amounts in INR)

Sr. No.
NOTE 

NO.

FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED 

31ST MARCH 

2018

FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED 

31ST MARCH 

2017

A.

I. REVENUE

Revenue From Operations É 20 34,88,73,426        10,99,95,316        

Other Income É 21 15,95,125             20,09,382             

Other Gains / (Losses) - Net É 0 0

TOTAL INCOME 35,04,68,551        11,20,04,697        

II. EXPENSES

Cost of Goods Purchased É 22 30,14,22,845        13,28,69,642        

Changes in Inventories of Work-in-Progress,Stock-in-Trade and Finished 

Goods É 23 3,24,76,740          (3,29,16,317)         

Employee Benefit Expenses É 24 78,68,171             50,26,466             

Finance Costs É 25 10,487                   14,728                   

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses É 26 1,25,887                1,22,337                

Impairment of Goodwill and Other Non-Current Assets É 0 0

Other Expenses É 27 48,47,817             34,80,398             

TOTAL EXPENSES 34,67,51,946        10,85,97,256        

III. Profit/(Loss) Before Exceptional items & Tax É  37,16,605             34,07,441             

Exceptional Items É 28 (1,33,930)              10,609                   

IV. Profit/(Loss) Before Tax From Continuing Operations É 35,82,675             34,18,050             

Income Tax Expense

Current Tax É 29 6,82,680                6,50,240                

Deferred Tax É (16,956)                 16,396                   

A. 29,16,952             27,51,414             

B. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

I. Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss A/c É 30 (10,11,505)            (1,25,02,614)         

Income Tax Relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss A/cÉ 0 0

II. Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss A/c 0 0

Income Tax Relating to items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss A/c 0 0

B. (10,11,505)            (1,25,02,614)         

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD [A+B] 19,05,447             (97,51,200)            

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic EPS É 31 0.66                        0.63                        

Diluted EPS É 31 0.66                        0.63                        

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

PARTICULARS

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018

PROFIT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
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Statement of Changes in Equity  

 

 
 

As per our report of even date              For and on behalf of Board of Directors, Panache Innovations Limited 
For JAIN SALIA & ASSOCIATES,  
Chartered Accountants 

 
 

[ICAI FRNo. 116291W] Mr. Amit D. Rambhia Mr. Jayachandran Sunderamoorthy 
 Managing Director Whole-Time Director & CFO 
CA JAYESH K. SALIA DINo:- 00165919 DINo:- 07706021 
Partner   
(Mem No. 044039)  Mr. Priyank Sangoi 
  Company Secretary 
Place: Mumbai                      Place: Mumbai Mem. No. A50896 
Dated: 30.05.2018                  Dated: 30.05.2018  

 

  

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2018 (STANDALONE)

(a) EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(b) OTHER EQUITY

(All amounts in INR)

Securities 

Premium 

Reserve

Other 

Reserve

(Specify 

Nature)

Retained 

Earnings

0 0 0 81,19,075 0 0 81,19,075 

0 0 0 (2,84,630) 0 0 (2,84,630)

0 0 0 78,34,445 0 0 78,34,445 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 27,51,414 0 0 27,51,414 

0 0 0 0 (1,25,02,614) 0 (1,25,02,614)

0 0 0 (43,90,000) 0 0 (43,90,000)

0 0 0 (8,93,700) 0 0 (8,93,700)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 (12,34,075) 0 0 (12,34,075)

0 0 0 40,68,084 (1,25,02,614) 0 (84,34,530)

0 0 0 29,16,952 0 0 29,16,952 

0 0 0 0 (10,11,505) 0 (10,11,505)

0 0 0 (15,19,950) 0 0 (15,19,950)

0 0 0 (3,09,425) 0 0 (3,09,425)

0 0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 51,55,661 (1,35,14,119) 0 (83,58,458)

4,39,00,000                           Nil 4,39,00,000

Balance as at 01st April 

2017

Changes in Equity Share 

Capital During FY 2017-18

Balance as at 31st 

March 2018

Balance as at 01st April 

2016

Changes in Equity Share 

Capital During FY 2016-17

Balance as at 31st 

March 2017

Other Comprehensive Income for the Year

Dividends

Dividend Distribution Tax

Any Other Change (to be Specified)

Balance as at 31st March 2018

Profit/Loss for the Year

Balanceat the beginningof thereportingPeriodas

at 01st April 2016.

Adjustments as per IND AS

Balance as per IND AS as on 01st April 2016.

Changein accountingPolicy& Prior Perioderrors

restatedbalanceat the beginningof the reporting

period.

Profit/Loss for the Year

Other Comprehensive Income for the Year

Dividends

Dividend Distribution Tax

Transfer to Reserves

Any Other Change (to be Specified)

Balance as at 31st March 2017

Total

4,39,00,000                           

Particulars

Share 

Application 

Money 

Pending for 

Allotment

Reserves & Surplus Equity 

Instruments 

Through Other 

Comprehensiv

e Income

Other items of 

other 

Comprehensive 

Income 

(Specify nature)

Nil 4,39,00,000
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Cash Flow Statement

  

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit Before Tax as per Profit & Loss A/c 35,82,675 34,18,050

Adjustments for Non-cash Items

Depreciation on Fixed Assets 1,25,887 1,22,337

Exchange Rate Fluctuation Gain/(loss) (14,204) 0

Assets Written Off 0 19,746

Investments Written Off 0 1,08,530

Share Issue Expenses Written off 4,30,582 4,30,582

Preliminery Expenses Written off 1,01,228 1,01,228

6,43,493 7,82,423

42,26,168 42,00,473

Adjustments for Non-Operating Items

Interest Income (15,95,125) (20,02,730)

Dividend Received 0 (5,625)

Profit on Sale of Investments 0 (2,75,295)

Interest on Dividend Distribution Tax 62,559 0

(15,32,566) (22,83,650)

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 26,93,602 19,16,823

Adjusted for Change in Working Capital:

Inventories 3,24,76,740 (3,29,16,317)

Trade Receivable (3,55,95,906) (8,20,54,125)

Other Current Assets (68,00,000) (1,50,000)

Other Non-Current Assets 0 69,000

Trade Payable 94,53,720 10,85,68,263

Provisions (14,75,303) 20,15,041

Other Current Liability 6,69,944 6,51,589

Current Tax Liability 71,55,876 58,85,072 19,88,205 (18,28,344)

Cash Generated from Operations 85,78,674 88,479

Taxes Paid (4,89,225) (11,77,688)

Net Cash Flow from Operations ( A ) 80,89,449 (10,89,209)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash Inflow

FD Matured 0 0

Dividend Income 0 5,625

Interest Income 15,95,125 20,02,730

Loans Repaid by Parties 1,30,30,476 1,42,56,302

Profit on Sale of Investments 0 2,75,295

Sale of Investments 21,59,451 1,67,85,052 72,87,131 2,38,27,083

Cash Outflow

Purchase of Other Intangible Assets 69,000 0

Purchase of Investments 0 40,25,486

Investment in Subsidiary 8,86,226 87,200

Loans Given 2,24,81,849 (2,34,37,075) 1,58,42,695 (1,99,55,382)

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities ( B ) (66,52,023) 38,71,702

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash Outflow

Dividend Distributed 15,19,950 43,90,000

Dividend Distribution Tax 3,09,425 8,93,700

Interest on Dividend Distribtuion Tax 62,559 0

Borrowing Repaid 0 (18,91,934) 2,875 (52,86,575)

Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities ( C ) (18,91,934) (52,86,575)

=hgmbgn^] É,,

STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018

PARTICULARS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2018

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2017
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As per our report of even date              For and on behalf of Board of Directors, Panache Innovations Limited 
For JAIN SALIA & ASSOCIATES,  
Chartered Accountants 

 
 

[ICAI FRNo. 116291W] Mr. Amit D. Rambhia Mr. Jayachandran Sunderamoorthy 
 Managing Director Whole-Time Director & CFO 
CA JAYESH K. SALIA DINo:- 00165919 DINo:- 07706021 
Partner   
(Mem No. 044039)  Mr. Priyank Sangoi 
  Company Secretary 
Place: Mumbai                       Place: Mumbai Mem. No. A50896 
Dated: 30.05.2018                  Dated: 30.05.2018  

  

CASH FLOW FROM ALL ACTIVITIES (A+B+C) (4,54,509) (25,04,082)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning

Cash in Hand 47,449 7,06,079

Balance in Bank 5,98,777 94,604

FD With Bank 0 6,46,226 23,49,626 31,50,309

1,91,718 6,46,226

Closing Balance as per accounts

Cash in Hand 41,569 47,449

Balance in Bank 1,50,149 5,98,777

1,91,718 6,46,226

Notes:

1

2 Pevious Year Figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary.

PARTICULARS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2018

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2017

Statementof CashFlowshasbeenpreparedunderindirectmethodassetout in theInd AS7 "Statementof CashFlows"asspecifiedin the

Companies(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015.
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Notes to Financial Statement 
 
Note No.1: General Notes to Accounts on Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 
on 31st March, 2018. 

 

1 Significant Accounting Policies, practices annexed to & forming part of accounts for the year ending on 31st March, 

2018. 

 

1.1 Basis of Preparation 

¢ƘŜ ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ CƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ {ǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎ ƘŀǾŜ ōŜŜƴ ǇǊŜǇŀǊŜŘ ƛƴ ŀŎŎƻǊŘŀƴŎŜ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ ǇǊƻǾƛǎƛƻƴǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴies 

!ŎǘΣ нлмо ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ LƴŘƛŀƴ !ŎŎƻǳƴǘƛƴƎ {ǘŀƴŘŀǊŘǎ όάLƴŘ !{έύΣ ŀǎ ƴƻǘƛŦƛŜŘ ǳƴŘŜǊ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴƛŜǎ όLƴŘƛŀƴ !ŎŎƻǳƴǘƛƴƎ 

Standards) (Amendment) Rules 2016 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs in respect of sections 133 of 

Companies Act 2013.The financials for the year ended 31st March 2018 of the company are the first Financial 

statements prepared in compliance with Ind AS. The date of transition is 01st April 2016. The financial statements 

upto the year ended 31st March 2017, were prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards notified 

ǳƴŘŜǊ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴƛŜǎ ό!ŎŎƻǳƴǘƛƴƎ {ǘŀƴŘŀǊŘǎύ wǳƭŜǎ нллс όάL-D!!tέύ ŀƴŘ ƻǘƘŜǊ ǊŜƭŜǾŀƴǘ ǇǊƻǾƛǎƛƻƴǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ !ŎǘΦ 

The figures for the year ended 31st March 2017, have now been restated as per Ind AS to provide comparability. 

 

1.2 System of Accounting 

 

1.2.1 The Company follows Mercantile System of Accounting and recognizes Income & Expenditure on an  

accrual basis. 

 

1.2.2 Accounts of the Company are prepared under the Historical Cost convention method, except for certain 

financial instruments that are measured at fair value in accordance with Ind AS.  

 

1.2.3 Fair Value measurements under Ind As are categorized as below based on the degree to which inputs to 

the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to their fair value 

measurement in its entirety. 

 

¶ Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical   assets or liabilities that 

the company can access at measurement date. 

¶ Level 2 inputs, other than quoted prices included in level 1,that are observable for the asset or 

liability, either directly or indirectly; and  

¶ Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets/liabilities. 

 

1.3 Going Concern 

Fundamental Accounting assumption of going concern is followed in preparation of the financial statement. 

 

1.4 Presentation of Financial Statements 

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in 

ǘƘŜ {ŎƘŜŘǳƭŜ LLL ǘƻ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴƛŜǎ !ŎǘΣ нлмо όάǘƘŜ !ŎǘέύΦ ¢ƘŜ ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘ ƻŦ ŎŀǎƘ Ŧƭƻǿǎ Ƙŀǎ ōŜŜƴ prepared and 

ǇǊŜǎŜƴǘŜŘ ŀǎ ǇŜǊ ǘƘŜ ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜƳŜƴǘǎ ƻŦ LƴŘ !{ т ά{ǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘ ƻŦ /ŀǎƘ ŦƭƻǿǎέΦ ¢ƘŜ ŘƛǎŎƭƻǎǳǊŜ ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜƳŜƴǘǎ ǿƛǘƘ 

respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule III to the 

Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the financial statements along with the other notes required 

to be disclosed under the notified Indian Accounting Standards and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

* Amounts in the Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR). 
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1.5 Use of Estimates 

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) requires 

management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, 

expenses, assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of financial statements and 

ǘƘŜ ǊŜǎǳƭǘǎ ƻŦ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴǎ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǊŜǇƻǊǘƛƴƎ ǇŜǊƛƻŘΦ !ǎ ǎǳŎƘ ŜǎǘƛƳŀǘŜǎ ŀǊŜ ōŀǎŜŘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘΩǎ ōŜǎǘ 

knowledgŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŎǳǊǊŜƴǘ ŜǾŜƴǘǎ ŀƴŘ ŀŎǘƛƻƴǎΤ ǘƘŜǊŜ ŀǊŜ ǇƻǎǎƛōƛƭƛǘƛŜǎ ƻŦ ǎǳŎƘ ŜǎǘƛƳŀǘŜǎ ǊŜǎǳƭǘƛƴƎ ƛƴ ƻǳǘŎƻƳŜΩǎ 

requiring material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods. 

 

1.6 Prior Period Errors 

Prior Period Errors have been corrected retrospectively in the first set of financial statements approved for issue 

after the discovery of error by: 

 

a) Restating the comparative amounts of the prior period presented, in which the error occurred 

b) If the error occurred before the earliest prior period presented, the opening balance of assets, liability and 

equity is restated for the earliest prior period presented. 

 

Accordingly, the company has rectified the prior period error occurred in case of amortization of Intangible 

Assets (Cavincally Brand) by restating the carrying amount of intangible asset as on 01st April 2016 (earliest prior 

period presented) and charging the difference to equity. Accordingly deferred tax effect on such restatement of 

carrying amount has also been accounted for. 

 

Effect of such changes in financial statements as on 01.04.2016 is as follows:- 

(Amount in INR) 

Particulars Reported value Prior period error 
which is rectified 

Rectified value c/f 

Intangible Assets 
Cavincally Brand 

10,00,000 (2,00,000) 8,00,000 
 

Deferred Tax Liabilities due to 
restatement of Intangible Asset. 
 

568 84,630 85,198 

 

1.7 Employee Benefits 

i. Short Term Employee Benefits 

Employee Benefits such as Salaries, Wages, short term compensated absences, and expected cost of bonus, 

ex-gratia, and performance linked rewards falling due, wholly within twelve months of rendering the service 

are classified as short term employee benefits and are expensed in the period in which the employee 

renders the related service. 

 

ii. Post-Employment Benefits 

a. The company does not have any policy to make any contribution to defined contribution plans as the 

company is not mandatorily required to do so. 

b. The Company has not made any defined benefit plans. 

 

1.8 Financial Instruments 

Financial assets and/or financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes party to a contract 

embodying the related financial instruments. All financial assets, financial liabilities and financial guarantee 

contracts are initially measured at transaction values and where such values are different from the fair value 

then, at fair value. Transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and 

financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are 

added to or deducted from as the case may be, the fair value of such assets or liabilities, on initial recognition. 

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value 

through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the statement of profit or loss for the year. 
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The financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and presented on net basis in the Balance Sheet when any 

current legal enforceable right arises to set-off the recognised amounts and it is intended to either settle on net 

basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

 

i. Financial Assets 

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at amortised cost or at fair value 

depending on the classification of the financial assets as follows: 

 

Recognition 

¶ Other investments in debt instruments ς at amortised cost, subject to following conditions:  

Á The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect 

contractual cash flows; and  

Á The contractual terms of instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments 

of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

¶ The management has exercised its option to measure fair value changes in Equity Instruments through 

Other Comprehensive Income, as such Investments have not been held by the company for the 

purpose of trade. 

 

Recognition of Income on Financial Assets 

For financial assets that are measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (herein after 

referred to as FVTOCI), income by way of interest, dividend and exchange difference (on debt instrument) 

is recognised in the statement of profit or loss for the period and changes in fair value (other than on 

account of such income) are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated in other equity.  

 

De-recognition 

A Financial Asset is primarily De-recognized when:- 

¶ the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired, or  

¶ the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 

obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a pass-

through arrangement; and (a) the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of 

the asset, or b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards 

of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.  

¶ On de-recognition of a financial asset (Other than investments in Equity Instruments) in its entirety, 

the difference between the carrying amounts measured at the date of de-recognition and the 

consideration received is recognised in the statement of profit or loss for the period.  

¶ Impairment of financial assets: The company recognises impairment loss on trade receivables using 

expected credit loss model, which involves use of a provision matrix constructed on the basis of 

historical credit loss experience as permitted under Ind AS 109. 

 

ii. Financial Liabilities 

 

Initial Recognition 

Financial liabilities, including derivatives and embedded derivatives, which are designated for measurement 

at Fair Value Through Profit & Loss (hereafter referred to as FVTPL) are subsequently measured at fair value. 

All other financial liabilities including loans and borrowings are measured at amortised cost using Effective 

Interest Rate (EIR) method. 

 

A financial liability is derecognised when the related obligation expires or is discharged or cancelled. 

 

Subsequent Measurement 

Financial Liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the Effective Interest Rate Method (EIR). For trade 

and other payables maturing within one year from the reporting date, the carrying amounts, approximate 

fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments. 
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1.9 Foreign Currencies 

¶ The functional currency and presentation currency of the company is Indian Rupee (INR). 

¶ ¢ǊŀƴǎŀŎǘƛƻƴǎ ƛƴ ŎǳǊǊŜƴŎƛŜǎ ƻǘƘŜǊ ǘƘŀƴ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ŦǳƴŎǘƛƻƴŀƭ ŎǳǊǊŜƴŎȅ ŀǊŜ ǊŜŎƻǊŘŜŘ ƻƴ ƛƴƛǘƛŀƭ ǊŜŎƻƎƴƛǘƛƻƴ 

using the exchange rate at the transaction date. 

¶ At each Balance Sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Exchange 

differences that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting of monetary items at each Balance 

Sheet date at the closing spot rate are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which 

they arise  

 

1.10 Recoverability of Trade Receivables 

Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining whether 

a provision against those receivables is required. Factors considered include the credit rating of the 

counterparty, the amount and timing of anticipated future payments and any possible actions that can be taken 

to mitigate the risk of non-payment. 

 

1.11 Taxes on Income  

The tax expense for the period comprises of current tax and deferred income tax. Tax is recognised in Statement 

of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income 

or in Equity where the tax is also recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or in Equity. 

 

Á Current Tax 

Tax on income for the current period is determined on the basis of taxable income and tax credits computed 

in accordance with the provisions of the Income tax Act 1961, and based on the expected outcome of 

assessments/appeals. 

 

Á Deferred Tax 

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 

ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ ŎƻǊǊŜǎǇƻƴŘƛƴƎ ǘŀȄ ōŀǎŜǎ ǳǎŜŘ ƛƴ ŎƻƳǇǳǘŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ǘŀȄŀōƭŜ 

profit and quantified using the tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted as on the reporting date. 

 

Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences to the extent that is 

probable that, taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can 

be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and 

reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow 

all or part of the asset to be recovered. 

 

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from 

the manner in which the company expects, at the end of reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying 

amount of its assets and liabilities. 

 

Transaction or event which is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or in 

equity, is recorded along with the tax as applicable. 

 

1.12 Operating Segments 

Operating segments are those components of the business whose operating results are regularly reviewed by 

the chief operating decision making body in the company to make decisions for performance assessment and 

resource allocation.  

 

The reporting of segment information is the same as provided to the management for the purpose of the 

performance assessment and resource allocation to the segments. 

 

Considering the nature and scope of business of the company, the Chief Operating Decision Maker could identify 

the following operating segments 
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i. Computer System 

ii. Consumer Electronic goods. 

 

However, as the reporting criteria are not met by Consumer Electronic Goods segment, the company has not 

prepared segment information as per Ind AS 108.  

 

IƻǿŜǾŜǊΣ ŀ ǊŜǇƻǊǘ ƻƴ ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ǊŜƭƛŀƴŎŜ ƻƴ aŀƧor customers is as follows:- 

Sales Made to Major Customers Total Sales during the year       
2017-18 

% of total sales made to major  
customers 

Rs. 24,70,44,551 Rs. 34,88,73,426 70.81% 

 

1.13 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

Provisions are recognised only when: 

i. The Company has a present obligation (legal or Constructive) as a result of a past event; 

ii. it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 

obligation; and 

iii. a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

 

Provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation and when the effect of 

time value of money is material, the carrying amount of the provision is discounted to the present value of those 

cash flows. Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure required to settle a provision is recognised only 

when it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will be received. 

 

Contingent liability is disclosed in case of: 

i. a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be 

required to settle the obligation; and 

ii. a present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible. 

 

Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.  

 

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. Where the 

unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be 

received under such contract, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and measured as a 

provision. 

 

1.14 Statement of Cash Flows 

Statement of Cash Flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing and financing activities. 

Cash flow from operating activities is reported using indirect method, adjusting the net profit for the effects of: 

i. changes during the period in inventories and operating receivables and payables transactions of a non-

cash nature; 

ii. non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, deferred taxes, unrealised foreign currency gains and 

losses, and undistributed profits of associates; and 

iii. all other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows. 

 

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Statement of Cash Flows exclude items which 

are not available for general use as on the date of Balance Sheet. 

 

1.15 Earnings per Share 

Basic and Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing net profit or loss for the period attributable to 

equity shareholders and weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period. 

There are no potential equity shares in the books, and therefore diluted earnings per share are same as basic 

earnings per share. 




